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NOTICE  

Notice is hereby given that 27th Annual General Meeting of Association of Lady 
Entrepreneurs of India (ALEAP) will be held on 30th September at 11 A.M IST through 
Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), to transact the following 
business:  
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts of the company for the year ended 
31st March, 2021 and the reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon. 
 

Place: Hyderabad   By and Order of the Board of Directors  
Date: 11.09.2021   For Association of Lady Entrepreneurs of India 
 
 Sd/-                                                                                    
 Smt. V. Sreedevi 
 Director &Honorary Secretary 
 DIN: 06989823 
NOTES:  

1. In view of the COVID 19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its Circular  
No 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 read with Circulars 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020 
and  17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020 (collectively referred to as ‘ MCA Circulars’), 
has introduced certain measures enabling companies to convene their Annual 
General Meetings (AGM) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual 
Means (OAVM)  without physical presence of Members at common venue and also 
send notice of the Meeting and other correspondences related thereto, through 
electronic mode. In compliance with the said requirements of the MCA Circulars, 
electronic copy of the Notice along with the Annual Report for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2021 consisting of financial statements including Board’s Report, 
Auditors’ Report and other documents required to be attached therewith (Collectively 
referred to as Notice) have been sent to those members whose e-mail ids are 
registered with the Company and no physical copy of the Notice is sent by the 
Company to any Member. The Notice has also been hosted on the website of the 
Company.   

 
2. In compliance with the said MCA Circulars, the Company has also published a public 

notice by way of an advertisement issued in Financial Express (English) and Nava 
Telangana, (Telugu) dated 12.09.2021 notifying the members about the ensuring 
AGM and also advising the members whose e-mail ids are not registered with the 
Company to register the same immediately. 

 
3. Keeping in view of the above public notice, the Company shall send the Notice to such members 

whose e-mail ids get registered with the company enabling them to participate in the meeting 
and cast their votes 

 
 
4. In terms of the aforesaid MCA Circulars, the businesses set out in the Notice will be 

transacted by the members only through the e-voting system provided during the 
meeting while participating through VC facility.  

 
5. As per MCA Circulars, the facility of joining the AGM through VC will be made available 

to 1000 members on first come first served (excluding directors, auditors etc) basis. 
The Company has appointed M/s. Erudite Web Solutions for providing the VC facility 
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to the members for participating in the Meeting and voting at the Meeting through 
Inst poll. The members are requested to follow the following instructions in order to 
participate in the Meeting through VC mechanism:  

 

a. The login-id and password for joining the meeting will be shared separately 
through a follow up email to this Notice;  

b. The facility for joining the Meeting shall be kept open 15 minutes before the 
time scheduled to start the meeting i.e.10.45 AM on 30th September, 2021 and 
15 minutes after the expiry of the said scheduled time i.e. till 11.15 AM;  

c. Participation of single member shall only be allowed at a time;  

d. Queries on the accounts and operations of the Company or the businesses 
covered under the Notice may be sent to the company at least seven days in 
advance of the meeting so that the answers may be made readily available at 
the meeting;  

e. Members are requested to e-mail at info@eruditewebsolutions.com or call at 
+91 9000544404 in case of any technical assistance required at the time of log 
in/ assessing/ voting at the Meeting through VC;  

f. Instructions for e-voting at the AGM / remote e-voting through email for poll (if 
required) will be shared to all the members shortly by the follow up email.  

 
6. In view of the MCA Circulars, no proxy shall be appointed by the members. However, 

corporate members are required to send to the Company, a certified copy of the 
Board Resolution, pursuant to section 113 of the Companies Act 2013, authorizing 
their representative to attend and vote at the Meeting through VC.  

 
7. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel maintained under Section 

170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts and Arrangements in 
which Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013 shall be made available only in electronic form for inspection during the Meeting 
through VC which can be accessed upon request through email to 
aleapcircular@gmail.com  

 
8. The Annual Report for the financial year ended 2020-21 shall also be available on the 

Company’s website www.aleap.org 
 
9. The results of e- voting shall be declared immediately on or after the Meeting of the 

Company by the Chairperson or by any other person duly authorised in this regard.  
 
Place: Hyderabad By Order of the Board of Directors  
Date: 11.09.2021 For Association of Lady Entrepreneurs of India 
  
 
 Sd/- 
 Smt. V. Sreedevi 
 Director & Honorary Secretary 
 DIN: 06989823 
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PRESIDENT MESSAGE 
Dear Members, 

The year 2021 will always remain for the rest of our lives and we all feel some of the 
strongest emotions about the meaning of what we have been doing on earth.  We feel the 
vulnerability of our daily routine and facing the challenges that are lying ahead of us.  We 
are united to overcome and move to achieve common goals that brings us together.   

But things need to move Put Covid pandemic taught us to look at opportunities for life and 
business survival. Many new businesses emerged in our country and digital technology is 
opening up new opportunities for sustainable business. 

In the recent years, the rise of social enterprise has seen a sharp increase in consumers 
need and desire to contribute to business who use a percentage of their profits to help a 
range of deserving causes.  This change in habits has paved the way for new kind of 
business values.  These new social enterprises are the solutions for improving lives of 
others and more common is to setup a vast business landscape.   

Another aspect entrepreneurs shall keep keen eye in the changing trends appear within 
their potential consumer base.  Digital literacy helps our entrepreneurs to reach consumers 
and upgrade their production process with digital technology. 

During the year put though we are not able to meet our members, ALEAP Team contributed 
by handling online programs to be able to motivate, rekindle spirit of entrepreneurship 
among our members add by understanding the importance of technology. We have 
collaborated with various institutions to offer innovative technologies to improve processes 
and production. During 2020-21, ALEAP was recognized by various Ministries for our 
committed objective to women entrepreneurship given an opportunity to set up incubation 
in the form of ALEAP WE HUB and for setting up of WE ITTC with the support of 
Government of India.   

We introduced one stop services through our Help Desk as Central Information Centre 
for dissemination of information, technology and training. All our activities during the year 
were not hampered by Pandemic and we were able to help our 
   

ALEAP believes in “The best way to predict the future is to create it”.  All our activities 
during the year were not hampered by Pandemic and we were able to help our 
entrepreneurs because of resilience and commitment of our staff and ALEAP Team who 
were committed and continued various activities. I thank our Managing Committee 
Members and Team of ALEAP for the support services extended during this crisis.   

Let us remember, success is not final, failure is not fatal. it is the courage to continue that 
counts.  Dear friends, we are there in all your endeavor to support, encourage and admire, 
please take your pride in your business journey by believing in yourself, wishing the good 
things to happen and all of us should unitedly pray to God to end this misery.   

Best Wishes  

Thank you 

 SD/- 
 Rama Devi Kanneganti 
 President,  
 Association of Lady Entrepreneurs of India 
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BOARD REPORT 

Dear Members,  
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting this 27thAnnual Report on the affairs of the 
Company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended on 31st 
March, 2021. 
 
1. OPERATING RESULTS OR PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY:  

 The company’s revenue from operations during the year under review was Rs. 175.15 

Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 141.63 Lakhs). The Company has excess of expenditure 

over income amounting to Rs. 14.57 Lakhs (Previous year excess of expenditure over 

income Rs. 74.52 Lakhs). 

2. DETAILS OF THE DIFFERENT COMMITTEES AND THEIR MEETINGS  

MANAGING COMMITTEE (BOARD) MEMBERS FOR THE YEAR 2020-2021 

 OFFICE BEARERS: 

§ Smt. K. RAMA DEVI - PRESIDENT 

§ Smt. A. DURGA BHAVANI - VICE PRESIDENT 

§ Smt. V. SREEDEVI  - SECRETARY 

§ Smt. T.  PALLAVI JOSHI - JOINT SECRETARY 

§ Smt. B. KAVITHA - TREASURER  

 OTHER MEMBERS: 

· Smt. P.  JYOTHI RANI 

· Smt. K. PADMAJA PRABHAKAR 

· Smt. B VIJAYA LAKSHMI 

· Smt. B. SAILAJA 

· Smt. Y.  TRIPURAMBA 

· Smt. U. PADMAVATHI 

· Smt. N. SWAROOPA RANI  

· Smt. C. RAJANI 

· Smt. M. LAKSHMI 

· Smt. B. PADMAVATHI ANNAPURNA 

· Smt. K. SRI MAHALAKSHMI 

 CO-OPTED MEMBERS: 

· Smt. B. HIMA BINDU 

· Smt. M. ROOPA 

· Smt. S. NIVEDITHA 
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DETAILS OF THE MANAGING COMMITTEE (BOARD) MEETINGS HELD DURING 

2020-2021 

6 Managing Committee Meetings were held during 01st April, 2020 to 31st March 2021. The 

following are the dates of the meetings: 

 

· 19.06.2020 
· 20.08.2020 
· 27.11.2020 
· 30.12.2020 
· 08.02.2021 
· 18.03.2021 

--------------- 
--------------- 
--------------- 
--------------- 
--------------- 
--------------- 

 

Details of the Attendance of 

MC (Board) Members for the Year 2020-2021 

(1st April 2020 – 31st March 2021) 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the 
MC Member 

Total No.  of MC 
meetings held 

during the tenure 
of the member 

No. of 
meetings 

Attended by 
the 

MC Members 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

 

Smt. K. RAMA DEVI 

Smt. A. DURGA BHAVANI 

Smt. V. SREEDEVI        

Smt. T.  PALLAVI JOSHI 

Smt. B. KAVITHA   

Smt. P.  JYOTHI RANI 

Smt. K. PADMAJA PRABHAKAR 

Smt. B VIJAYA LAKSHMI      

Smt. B. SAILAJA 

Smt. Y.  TRIPURAMBA 

Smt. U. PADMAVATHI 

Smt. N. SWAROPA RANI    

Smt. C. RAJANI 

Smt. M. LAKSHMI 

Smt. B. PADMAVATHI ANNAPURNA 

•         Smt. K. SRI MAHALAKSHMI  

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

6 

5 

6 

6 

4 

5 

3 

4 

5 

6 

5 

5 

5 

6 

 
DETAILS OF OTHER COMMITTEES 

Ø AIC ALEAP WE-HUB :  Mrs. K Rama Devi – Chairperson 

Ø Women Entrepreneurs International  

 Trade & Technology Centre (WE ITTC)  : Dr. Sheela Bhide, IAS (Rtd.) – Chairperson           

   Mrs. K Rama Devi, Senior Vice Chairperson 

   Mrs. P. Jyothi Rani – Vice Chairperson 

Ø Electronics Incubation Centre              :  Mrs. B Vijaya Lakshmi - Incharge 

Ø Skill Development & Trainings           : Mrs. B Padmavathi Annapurna – Chairperson 

Ø Clusters :  Mrs. C Rajani - Chairperson 

Ø ALEIZONE, Marketing, Exhibitions :  Mrs. B Sailaja – Chairperson 
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LAND COMMITTEE 

Ø ALEAP Industrial Estate, Gajularamaram, IALA, ALEAP  

 Mrs. B Vijaya Lakshmi – Chairperson,  

 Mrs. G Karuna –Vice Chairperson,  

 Mrs. B Kavitha – Secretary,  

 Mrs. U Padmavathi – Joint Secretary,  

 Mrs. K Sri Mahalakshmi - Treasurer 

Ø ALEAP Industrial Estate, Vijayawada       -Mrs. K Kanaka Durga – Chairperson  

Ø ALEAP Industrial Estate, Nandigama 

Ø ALEAP Industrial Estate, Rajahmundry        Mrs. N Swaroopa Rani-Chairperson 

Ø ALEAP Industrial Estate, Nellore          

Ø ALEAP Industrial Estate, Visakhapatnam  

Representation of ALEAP on the Governing Body of Centre for Entrepreneurship 

Development (CED): 

Ø Smt. K. Rama Devi (President) 

Ø Smt. A Durga Bhavani (Vice President) 

Ø Smt. Y.  Tripuramba (Secretary) 

Ø Smt. B. Kavitha Rajesh 

Ø Smt. K Padmaja Prabhakar 

Ø Smt. Hima Bindu 

Ø Smt. B Padmavathi Annapurna 

Ø Smt. M Roopa 

Ø Dr. Subhadra 

Ø Smt. Pallavi Joshi  

Representation of ALEAP on MC (Board) of ACGA 

Ø Smt. K Rama Devi (President) 
Ø Smt. U Padmavathi (Vice President) 
Ø Smt. B Kavitha (Secretary) 
Ø Smt. Durga Bhavani Adusumilli 
Ø Smt. Tripuramba Yarlagadda  
Ø Smt. Jyothi Rani Pidikiti 
Ø Smt. Padmaja Prabhakar Kamireddy 
Ø Smt. Sailaja Bander  
Ø Smt. Sarada Konda 
Ø Smt. Mohana Kota  

 

Representation of ALEAP on Board of WE ITTC 

Ø Dr. Sheela Bhide, IAS (retd.) (Chairperson) 
Ø Smt. K Rama Devi (Senior Vice Chairperson) 
Ø Smt. Jyothi Rani Pidikiti (Vice Chairperson) 
Ø Smt. Durga Bhavani Adusumilli 
Ø Smt.Tripuramba Yarlagadda  
Ø Smt. Padmaja Prabhakar Kamireddy 
Ø Smt. V Sreedevi 
Ø Smt. B Kavitha 
Ø Smt. B Aparna 
Ø Smt. K Sri Mahalakshmi 
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ABOUT PROGRAMS 

Extending Advisory and Handholding Support to Micro and Small Enterprises on 
Business Continuity Support in Telangana State in collaboration with UNDP 

UNDP has partnership with ALEAP to provide advisory support & guidance and handholding 
support to micro & small enterprises on business continuity support, safe resumption of 
operations and production, in line with government requirements and facilitate bridging 
the skill gaps faced by the enterprises. 

After signing the contract, Smt Rama Devi, President of ALEAP has organised a meeting 
with the team and discussed about the project interventions, scope of work and possibility 
of result-oriented implementation of the project within the given guidelines.   

ALEAP has set up a Help Desk in the month of July, 2020 at its Common Facilities Building 
in ALEAP Industrial Estate.  A dedicated toll-free number i.e 1800-212-2545 has been 
provided to extend support to the MSME Members, distributed e-Brochures, etc. 

3005 MSMEs have been reached out so far through the help desk and provided information 
on various schemes, safety guidelines, benefits to MSMEs under Atma Nirbhara Bharat, 
online registration marketing support, etc., of these 870 MSMEs belong to female 
entrepreneurs and 1205 MSMEs belong to male entrepreneurs.   The MSMEs are being 
regularly guided for online MSME registrations, Gem registration processes.   

ALEAP organised Webinar on “Government e-market (GeM) Webinar” on 6th August 
2020 on “Various Functionalities of Government e-market Place (GeM)”. Around 
92 MSMEs were participated in the webinar.  After the webinar, around 80 members came 
forward to get and got registration with the help of Help Desk.    

ALEAP organised a webinar on Software support for effective production, marketing, etc 
in association with M/s Zoho MSME on 10th September, 2020.  About 55 MSMEs, who 
are interested in software inclusion in their units are participated in the seminar.   

ALEAP also organised a webinar on “Support extended by various financial 
institutions and Government to MSMEs to revive in post COVID conditions” and 
around 97 MSMEs were participated in the webinar.  Smt K Rama Devi, President, ALEAP, 
Sri Kameswara Rao, AGM, SIDBI and Dr Yerram Raju, Director, DIHCL were the panelists.  
They have guided the participants and clarified their doubts on the support extended to 
MSMEs under Atma Nirbhara Bharat.  Dr Yerram Raju covered the topics viz. Revival & 
Rehabilitation, Overdue Bill Purchase, Critical Amount Funding, Stressed Asset Financing, 
NARI, Swashakti, Bridge Finance, etc.  After the webinar, around 60 MSMEs came forward 
to get financial benefits by approaching various banks and also with SIDBI.   

ALEAP mapped Skilled Workforce Requirements.  Skill needs mappings were conducted in 
the months of June-July 2020, Sep 2020, Oct 2020, Nov 2020, and Dec 2020.  314 
members responded and 200 units gave their manpower requirements.  They were 
connected with skilling manpower avenues like ITIs, PMKK Centres, DDUGKY Centers, etc. 

Initiatives of ALEAP in controlling the spread of Covid-19: 

ALEAP is implementing various activities to control the spread of Covid-19, which a novel 
Corona Virus wreaks havoc globally.   

1. Organized various awareness programs on spreading of covid-19 and informed 
about the preventive measures like maintenance of social distancing, washing hands 
– as per Govt. of India guidelines among MSMEs through campaigns both pre-and-
post-lockdown through various channels.  
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2. As a preventive measure, distributed Homeo Medicines through doctor’s 
campaigns.  

 Distribution of Homeo Medicine through arranging Doctor’s Campaigns to 10,000 plus 
families of MSME industrial workers and also distribution of Masks to the industrial 
MSME workers in industrial estates, to its members and entrepreneurs. 

3. Innovations at Atal Incubation Center ALEAP We-Hub, supported by Atal 
Innovation Mission (AIM), NITI Aayog, GoI: The Atal Incubation Center ALEAP 
has facilitated the development of few innovations of our startups to fight against 
COVID-19: 

 a. GermiBAN is a new generation integrated powerful sterilizer designed to fight 
Covid-19. It is UV, ionization, ozonation and HEPA filter based equipment to 
sterilize surface and air contamination. 

 b. Kavach - Biodegradable PPE for Covid19 frontline workers at AIC ALEAP We-
Hub.  

 c. Lockdown Enforcer is a device that can locate & track the movement of people 
in the lockdown areas which can also alert the appropriate authorities if they 
escape from lockdown.  

 d. Cajoose - Immunity enhancement: It acts as a supplier of dietary vitamin 
C (natural form).  

 e. Oxygen Concentrator with 90L/hr output concentrators that can be shared 
among 5-6 patients at any given time. 

 
Conduct of LEDP Programmes sponsored by NABARD 

The 1st batch of LEDP Program at Meerpet was inaugurated by Smt Sabitha Indra Reddy, 
Honourable Minister of Education, Telangana State on 7th June, 2020. She has highlighted 
the importance of women empowerment through skill development and also advised SHG 
women to utilise this opportunity for economic empowerment and the Centre shall become 
training cum production centre.  The Hon’ble Minister has appreciated NABARD officials for 
giving this opportunity for conducting skill training to SHG women at the grass root level.  
The 2nd batch was inaugurated by Dr G R Chintala, Chairman, NABARDON on 21.12.2020 
and the certificates for the 1st batch were distributed on the same day. 

Smt K Rama Devi, President, ALEAP has graced the inaugural and stated “the Centre will 
be facilitated as training cum production centre. ALEAP will arrange tie-ups with buyers 
for marketing. The participants only have to follow three norms during the training 
programme viz., (1) Sikshana (2) Sadhana (3) Samrudhi”. Smt K Rama Devi on behalf of 
ALEAP expressed thanks to NABARD officials for giving the opportunity which will help in 
boosting the women empowerment.    

ALEAP has conducted the following LEDPs with the support from NABARD. 

S.No Place Duration 
Nature of 
Activity 

No. of 
Candidates 

1 Meerpet 
Hyderabad 

08.06.2020 to 
15.01.2021 

Hand Embroidery 
Course 

90 

2 Siddipet  08.06.2020 to 
08.08.2020 

Jute Bag Making 90 

3 Nandigama 
Sangareddy 
District 

01.02.2021 to 
15.04.2021 

Industrial 
Garments 

90 

4 Surampally 
Krishna District 

27.02.2021 to 
06.04.2021 

Jute Bag Making 
Course 

90 
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Hand Embroidery Training to Raj Bhavan Pariwar under Atma Nirbhar Bharat 

(Self Reliant India) with Hon’ble Governor’s Initiatives 

Inspired by the Atma Nirbhar Bharat, concept as envisioned by our Hon’ble Prime Minister 
Shri Narendra Modi Ji and realizing the need to make India a Self-Reliant Country, Hon’ble 
Governor Dr. Tamilisai Soundararajan has initiated measures to help women, b ecome 
entrepreneurs and thus empower them and contribute for the Atma Nirbhar Bharat. 

As part of the initiatives, Hon’ble Governor launched the self-employment training 
programs for women of Raj Bhavan Pariwar by ALEAP and to help them to achieve 
economic independence and supplement the family income. It also helped them to get the 
best possible training and skill development and start their own units and to come up with 
innovative products and designs. ALEAP has provided training in Hand Embroidery and the 
training certificates were distributed by Hon’ble Governor Smt. Tamailisai Soundararajan 
on 01.01.2021. 
 
Skill Development Training Programmes to Minorities  

ALEAP conducted Skill Development Training Programmes for a period of two months to 
minority women at the following three Centres with the financial support from Telangana 
State Minorities Finance Corporation, Hyderabad.   
 

S.No Place Duration 
Nature of 
Activity 

No. of 
Candidates 

1. Amberpet, Hyderabad 05.10.2020 to 
18.12.2020 

Jute Bags 
Making 

30 

2. Malakpet, Hyderabad 05.10.2020 to 
18.12.2020 

Garments 
Making 

30 

3. ECIL, Hyderabad 05.10.2020 to 
18.12.2020 

Jute Bags 
Making 

30 

 
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Grameena Kaushaya Yojana (DDU-GKY) 

The Kudumbashree, Kerala State, DDU-GKY Program of Ministry of Rural Development, 
Government of India, has selected Association of Lady Entrepreneurs of India (ALEAP) as 
Project Implementing Agency for Implementation of DDU-GKY under Phase-7 Skill 
Development Program for 500 Candidates across 5 districts. The districts are Malappuram, 
Thrissur, Kozhikkode, Alappuzha and Kottayam. Out of which Malappuram &amp; 
Kottayam are identified as Nodal Districts. 

Initially we have trained 111 candidates in General Duty Assistant and Assistant Facility 
Manager Courses. We have placed the trainees as per the norms in different sectors. Since 
there was lockdown announced by the government on 22nd March, 2020 and we have 
closed the centre and reopened on 22nd September, 2020.  

Following the COVID-19 norms we have started the 2nd batch training on 16th November, 
2020 with 44 students and have to close the centre again due to 2nd lockdown in Kerala 
State as announced by the government. The trainings will be resumed once the 
government announces unlock in Kerala State. 

PM-YUVA Yojana: 

ALEAP received an assignment viz., PM-YUVA Yojana as pilot project from Ministry of Skill 
Development and Entrepreneurship (MSDE), Government of India.  The Pradhan Mantri 
YUVA (Yuva Udyamita Vikas Abhiyan) Yojana [PM -YUVA Yojana] is a centrally sponsored 
scheme launched in 2016 to implement entrepreneurship education training to upcoming 
entrepreneurs and students. The details on implementation of programme are as follows. 
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Entrepreneurship Awareness and Mobilization Programmes conducted 

S. 
No 

Details 
No. of 

Institutes 
covered 

No. of 
participants 

covered 

1 Entrepreneurship Awareness Program in 
Project Institutes (Student Orientation) 

38 5074 

2 Community Awareness Workshops 4 291 

 
Activities of Entrepreneurship Development Programme at Project Institutes 

S. 
No 

Details 

No. of Institutes 
covered/ 

Programmes 
organised 

No. of 
participants 

covered 

1 Students Enrolled in EDP 27 2298 

2 Students completed EDP 27 1916 

3 Faculty Mentor Training 1 27 

 
Entrepreneurship Education Program at Project Institutes with Faculty 

S. 
No 

Type of Project Institute 
No. of Faculty 

Mentors 
trained 

1 Industrial Training Institute (ITIs) 13 

2 Polytechnic 7 

3 Pradhan Mantri Kaushal Kendras (PMKKs)  2 

4 Jan Shikshan Sansthan (JSS)  3 

 
Entrepreneurship Education Program at Project Institutes with Students 

S. 
No 

Type of Institute 

Student 
Orientation 
Programs 

(No. of 
Institutes) 

EDP 
Course run 

(No. of 
Institutes) 

Students 
enrolled 
(No. of 

students) 

Students 
completed 

EDP 
(No. of 

students) 

1 Industrial Training 
Institutes (ITIs) 

24 16 1277 977 

2 Polytechnic 9 7 739 673 

3 Pradhan Mantri 
Kaushal Kendras 
(PMKKs)  

2 2 174 160 

4 Jan Shikshan 

Sansthan (JSS) 

3 2 108 106 

 

Skills Strengthening for Industrial Value Enhancement (STRIVE) Project 

The Department of Employment & Training (DET), Government of Telangana has selected 
ALEAP as in Industry Cluster (IC) for Implementation of Industry Apprenticeship Initiative 
(IAI) Programme under STRIVE (Skills Strengthening for Industrial Value Enhancement) 
Scheme of Ministry of Skill Development & Entrepreneurship, Government of India as 
National Apprenticeship Promotion Scheme (NAPS) under Pilot Programme.  

ALEAP has started four courses i.e Production/Machine Operator, Specialised Sewing 
Machine Operator (SSMO), Quality Control Chemist and Solar Panel Installation 
Technician.   
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S. 
No 

Place 

Duration 
Nature of 
Activity 

No. of 
Candidates BT- Basic 

Training 

OJT - 
On Job 

Training 

1. ALEAP Industrial 
Estate 
Pragathi Nagar 
Hyderabad 

3 9 Production/ 
Machine 
Operator 

20 

2. ALEAP Industrial 
Estate 
Pragathi Nagar 
Hyderabad 

3 21 Specialised 
Sewing Machine 
Operator 
(SSMO) 

20 

3. ALEAP Industrial 
Estate 
Pragathi Nagar 
Hyderabad 

3 9 Quality Control 
Chemist 

13 

4 ALEAP Industrial 
Estate 
Pragathi Nagar 
Hyderabad 

3 9 Solar Panel 
Installation 
Technician 

9 

 
Digital Skill Development Programs: 

Organised Digital Skill Development Programs on “How to use various digital Platforms 

effectively to increase product visibility and brand visibility” for Micro and Small 

Enterprises. Conducted 1st batch from 19.01.2021 to 02.02.2021 and started 2nd batch on 

31.03.2021 with following topics for the benefit of MSMEs.   

S. 
No 

Day and Topic Description 

1 Day 1 
Entrepreneurial Traits, Type of 
Company Incorporations, 
Importance of Digital marketing 

Thought process of an entrepreneur, 
How to choose the type of Incorporation, 
Why we need to think of Digital 
Platforms.  

2 Day 2 
Various government schemes, 
eligibility, loan processing 
procedure 

What is the eligibility of the various 
government schemes? Bank procedure 
for getting a loan, checklist for obtaining 
the loan. Projects to select. 

3 Day 3 
Customer Centric Products and 
Services, Building Brand in Niche 
Market 

How to make Customers understand our 
intention to serve them. How to build a 
Brand 

4 Day 4 
Marketing Funnel and sales Funnel 

Customer segmentation, Niche market, 
Market Research 
 

5 Day 5 
Branding through images - Canva 

How to create Brand Image among 
customers, How to create Logo and 
images on Canva Story  

6 Day 6 
Product Identification and Analysis 
with and without Inventory 

Customer behaviour, Early adopters 
(How to attract them) Market potential 

7 Day 7 
Google My Business 

How to make Google listings  
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8 Day 8 
WhatsApp Business 

How to optimize Whatsapp Business 
effectively. 

9 Day 9 
Facebook marketing 

Creating FB Pages, Business Promotion 
planning 

10 Day 10 
Instagram marketing 

Creating Insta account and reaching 
customers of that Business segment 

11 Day 11 
Logistics (Local and International) 

How to Ship your product from one 
location to location 

12 Day 12 
Payment Gateway – ease of 
payment collections 

How to setup payment gateway to collect 
payments through various modes (UPI, 
Debit/Credit Cards, Net Banking Etc.,) 

 

Atal Incubation Centre ALEAP WE-HUB supported by AIM, NITI Aayog, GoI 

During the year the following major programs were organized for the benefit of 

innovative startups and MSMEs: 

S 
No 

Name of the 
Program 

Description of the training 
Date of 

Program 

No. of 
Particip

ants 

1 Conducted Online 
Program on We 
Your Business 

In association with Women 
Entrepreneurship Platform (WEP), 
NITI Aayog, GoI, has organized "WE 
YOUR BUSINESS" first virtual  
fellowship program to advance 
entrepreneurship skilling and 
financial inclusion amongst aspiring 
women leaders across India. This 
program was being powered by 
WhatsApp initiative “Step Up to 
Scale Up” and served as an essential 
primer to help navigate complex 
start-up ecosystem of India. 

18.05.2020 
-

09.06.2020 
40 

2  "Leaping ahead 
Covid19 with 
SME Innovations" 

In collaboration with CSIR-CCMB, 
organized a webinar on “Leaping 
ahead COVID19 with SME 
Innovations” with Hon’ble Minister of 
MSME – Shri Nitin Jairam Gadkari 
garu to delve deeper into how start-
ups can be driven from their 
innovation to industrialisation. 

05.05.2020 250 

3 "Calmness in 
Crisis" 

In collaboration with Brahmakumaris 
organized a webinar to explore the 
amazing effects of spirituality 
towards a calmer lifestyle by 
awakening the inner strength to deal 
with the external challenges. 

08.05.2020 125 

4 Conversation 
with Emmanuel 
Murray - Caspain 

On investment trends, post-covid 
opportunities for agri food & food 
processing startups, innovators & 
entrepreneurs. 

29.05.2020 30 

5 Startup 
Opportunities in 
Biotechnology 

Organized a webinar in collaboration 
with KL University for the benefit of 
students and startups. 

01.06.2020 250 
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6 Opportunities in 
IT and 
Electronics for 
Startups 

Organised a webinar with Prof. 
Ramesh Loganathan, Professor of 
Practice, Co-Innovations IIIT 
Hyderabad under Meity project, GoI 

15.06.2020 50 

7 Entrepreneurship 
Opportunities & 
Challenges in 
Food Sector 

In collaboration with GITAM 
Hyderabad Business School to 
interact with the successful 
entrepreneurs in food processing 
sector. 

22.06.2020 62 

8 FARM TO FORK Virtual Entrepreneurship 
Development Program under "Atma 
Nirbhar Bharath" - Empowering 
Women in Food Sector 

21.07.2020 
- 

30.07.2020 
110 

9 Workshop on 
Biofuels, 
Biofertilizers & 
Bioprocess 
Technologies 

Market opportunities and current 
trends in biofuel towards a circular 
economy. Industrial Sterilisation 
Process and how to prepare Seed 
Culture with Bacillus Subtillis 
Sterilisation of Fermenter and 
Technique of Inoculation of Seed 
Culture for production of 
Biofertilizers. Hands-on training on 
Bio Process Technologies 

06.08.2020 
- 

08.08.2020 
73 

10 Electronics 
Euphoria 

In depth knowledge on the concepts 
of Bluetooth Technology, Embedded 
Systems, Nanoelectronics, Solar 
Technology, Edge Computing, 
CCTV's and Surveillance Camera's, 
PCB Circuit Design, RFID 
Technology, Biometric Finger Print 
Scanner, Fibre Optic Communication 

19.08.2020 
- 

25.08.2020 
44 

11. Skill upgradation 
fellowship to 
provide Health 
Services in 
MSME's 

Orientation to the Course of Soft 
Skills; Over View of Covid-19 
Covid-19 Transmission Standard & 
Transmission based precautions 
Preventive measures against Covid-
19 at work place 
Quarantine, Isolation & Hygiene 
measures; Infection control & 
Standard universal precautions 
Hand hygiene & Personal 
Protective Equipment (PPE) 
Spill Management 
Bio Medical Waste Management 
Occupational Safety and health 
Post lockdown Covid-19 strategic 
measures at work place 
Public health, Life style, Nutrition 
and Health Check-up of the 
vulnerable population 

24.08.2020 
- 

26.08.2020 
18 
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12 Hands on 
Training 
Workshop 
Webinar in 
Industrial Bio-
Technology 

Opportunities for Biotech Startups 
Biofules, Classification and Feed 
stocks for biofuels, Production 
technologies for biofuels; Down 
Stream Processing, Environmental 
Management in Biofuel Industry, 
Leach bed bioreactor for MSW 
conversion to biofuels.  
 
Hands-on training on Bio Process 
Technologies, IPR in Biotechnology 

22.09.2020 
- 

25.09.2020 
119 

13 "Business 
Opportunities in 
Soya - 
Empowering 
Women in Food 
Sector" 

Nutritional and Health Benefits of 
Soy; Soy Food Business 
Opportunities; Role of Soy in 
Boosting Immunity; Fund Raising in 
Agri Business; Aspects for an 
Entrepreneur to consider while 
setting up an enterprise and 
approaching funder; Mobile 
Processing Technologies and value 
addition at farm lands; Emerging 
trends in Food Processing equipment 
and introducing innovative viable 
machinery technologies for business 
prospects 

18.10.2020 
- 

20.10.2020 
69 

14 Inauguration of 
Food Processing 
and Technology - 
Grains / Spice 
Processing, 
Freeze Dryer and 
Electronics & 
Engineering  IT & 
ITES Units 

 Inaugurated by 
Dr. G R Chintala, Chairman, 
NABARD; 
Guest of Honour 
Sri. Y K Rao, CGM, NABARD, 
Telangana State 

21.12.2020 30 

15 Asset 
Restructuring 
Module for 
MSME's 

To bring awareness about the "ARM-
MSME" portal launched by SIDBI for 
the benefit of MSME's 

29.12.2020 105 

16 Orientation on 
GeM 

A Complete know-how on usage of 
GeM Portal 

11.02.2021 121 

17 International 
Women's Day 

 International Women’s Day 
celebrations 

08.03.2021 250 

18 Workshop on 
Training 
Hydroponics for 
Beginners 

Basic & Different Systems of 
Hydroponics, Construct your 
Hydorponic System; Nutrient & Pest 
Management; Operations & Business 
Opportunity 

01.03.2021 
- 

02.03.2021 
37 
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19 3 days Workshop 
on Design of 
Electric Vehicle 

Matlab Simulink and Simspace 
Motor Control design with Matlab 
and Simulink; Modelling batteries 
using Simulink and Simscape 
Battery cell balancing and stage of 
charge system estimation 
Battery thermal management 
system; Electric vehicle control 
system; Inverter and converter 

25.03.2021 
- 

27.03.2021 
14 

 
Memorandum of Understandings (MoUs) 

S 
No 

Name of the 
Academic / 

Corporate Partner 
Type of collaboration and the support 

provided 

Date of 
MoU 

1 Indian Institute of 
Packaging 

o Packaging technology transfer through 
trainings/courses and visits to 
entrepreneurs & start-ups. 

o To assist in establishing new and 
innovative businesses 

o To develop, test and commercialize new 
processed products. 

o Consultancy to existing industries or for 
creation of new industries for better 
performance and efficient functioning. 

o Mentoring & Advisory services 
o Participation in the related events, 

seminars etc 
o Analytical services to food industries for 

testing the food and other organic 
samples and providing reports on the 
proximate and ultimate compositions. 

o Information on research / education 
resources 

o Technical support in purchase of 
technologies. 

o Delivering specific solution in terms of 
R&D, Product development etc. 

22.06.2020 

2 IIT Kharagpur ALEAP We Hub will be branded as the 
"Outreach Partner" of Entrepreneurship Cell, 
IIT Kharagpur and its spotlight events such 
as Empresario, Global Entrepreneurship 
Summit and our year-long events 

28.08.2020 

3 Zoho Corporation 
Pvt. Ltd. 

ALEAP shall provide all necessary assistance 
and support to Zoho in enabling the Startups 
to use the Zoho Services. 
Zoho shall offer the Zoho Services to Startups 
subject to the usage right and limitations 
specified. 
Zoho shall provide maintenance and support 
to the Startups with respect to their use of 
the Zoho Services in the same manner it 
provides maintenance and support to its 
other customers. 

31.08.2020 
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4 Eagle10 Ventures Eagle10 Ventures will support with its pool 
of Investors/Mentors for providing strategic 
direction to the Cohort of Start-ups under 
the incubation program Atal Incubation 
Centre ALEAP We Hub as well as share its 
expertise in the processes, methodologies to 
deliver an effective incubation program 
Eagle10 Ventures will support the startups of 
Atal Incubation Centre ALEAP We Hub with 
contacts and source information through 
their network of investors/stakeholders 
Mention the logo of the other Party as an 
official program partner on their respective 
websites 
Sharing documents, processes, templates 
and other resources where appropriate and 
relevant to the terms of the moU. 

01.09.2020 

5 Hindu College of 
Pharmacy, Guntur 

Jointly organize awareness generation 
events on “Entrepreneurship Development” 
and Startup Hackathons, Workshops and 
Student Startup Training Programs 
Provide support and participation in 
student/faculty-oriented events organized by 
each party 
Certificate courses in 
Pharmacology/Pharmaceutical sciences 
Networking for mutual benefit 
Provide infrastructure in terms of space in 
conducting events with mutual support 
Recognizing the other party as a partner 
organization in selected events with mutual 
interest    

25.09.2020 

6 Fin Anomics Capital 
Box 

1.  Mentoring and Advisory Services 
2.  Commercialization of product or service 
3.  Customer insight gathering 
4.  Developing customer-centric prototype 
5.  Customer acquisition 
6.  Strengthening business models 
7.  Route to market 
8.  Financial planning 
9.  Revenue models and unit economics 
10. Startup Fundraising 
11. Participation in relevant Events & 

Seminars 
12. Startup Assessment, Evaluation and 

Valuation 
13. Preparation of Pitch Deck, Business Plan  

08.10.2020 

7 India Trade 
Promotion 
Organisation (ITPO) 

The scope of the collaboration is as follows: 
i. To jointly collaborate in organising 

various trade fairs and exhibitions for 
the benefit of the women entrepreneurs. 

ii. To jointly collaborate in organising 
Buyer-Seller Meets and other exclusive 
India shows with a view to bringing 
buyers and sellers together. 

24.11.2020 



ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021

18

iii. Collaborate in arranging product displays 
for visiting overseas buyers. 

iv. To provide information for participating 
in overseas trade fairs and exhibitions. 

v. ALEAP WITH will engage ITPO for 
knowledge dissemination on Trade 
promotion activities through short-term 
and medium- term courses on export 
import procedures in India and all other 
SAARC countries. 

vi. Encouraging small and medium scale 
units in export promotion efforts. 

vii. Conducting in-house and need-based 
research on trade and export promotion. 

8 Shri Siddhagiri 
Krishi Vigyan 
Kendra, Kaneri, 
Kolhapur, 
Maharashtra 

Knowledge sharing on collaborative projects 
related to Agri and Food Processing 
Workshops / Trainings / Events / Product 
Exhibitions / Programs in the area of 
Agriculture and Food Sectors should be done 
collaboratively and shall be extended all-
over the parts of India. Projects related to 
National importance or any funded projects 
by the ministries of Government of India 
would be filed or applied together as 
applicant or co-applicant. Implementation of 
the projects would be done from either 
parties or with the support of both parties 

12.01.2021 

9 AIC - Gujarat 
Technological 
University, 
Ahmedabad 

AIC ALEAP WE HUB and AIC-GTU will both 
provide intellectual and infrastructure 
support for carrying out technological 
research in collaboration in the areas of 
mutual interest.  
AIC ALEAP WE HUB and AIC-GTU will 
encourage and provide facilities to 
innovators/entrepreneurs/startups of AIC-
GTU and scientists of ALEAP We Hub of to 
explore and prepare joint proposals on 
thrust areas for funding 

10.02.2021 

10 Vijaya Institute of 
Technology for 
Women, 
Vijayawada 

Jointly organize awareness generation 
events on “Entrepreneurship Development” 
and Startup Hackathons, Workshops and 
Student Startup Training Programs 
Provide support and participation in 
student/faculty-oriented events organized by 
each party 
Networking for mutual benefit 
Provide infrastructure in terms of space in 
conducting events with mutual support 
Recognizing the other party as a partner 
organization in selected events with mutual 
interest    

17.02.2021 
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List of Startups of AIC ALEAP WE-HUB 

S 
No 

Name of the startup Description 

1 UVITA Foods & 
Beverages PVT.LTD 

Cashew apples are highly nutritious, possess medicinal 
properties and have industrial significance, but are 
considered as an agricultural waste and by-product of 
cashew nut production. They are highly perishable and 
astringent, and therefore nearly 99.9% of cashew 
apples are disposed off at the time of harvest itself. 
Dr. Uma, a Biotechnologist with a PhD and a passionate 
entrepreneur is into the manufacturing a healthy drink 
from the juice of cashew apples using a highly scientific 
process, to ensure retention of shelf life and nutritive 
values. This juice is tasty and refreshing instant source 
of energy, immunity booster, rich in Vitamin C, and 
antioxidants, and nutritious drink fit for all age groups 
(except for children below the age of 3). 

2 Market Galee Venture 
LLP 

There exist several ambiguities in price, technology and 
reach to smallholder farmers in the agri ecosystem. The 
brokers still regulate price and market access for 
farmers. Market inefficiencies exist, caused by 
invisibility to commodity price and availability. Market 
Galee an integrated marketplace for farmers, envisions 
decreasing the bottlenecks and ambiguities by 
connecting the right dots for creating an effective 
supply chain. It is a complete digital eco system for 
agri-production, distribution and Sale. 

3 M/s. TEKOPT Tekopt is an E-Business portal that gives a single 
platform for women entrepreneurs engaged in 
manufacturing, trading or E-Retailing, to sell their 
products online, globally without having to worry about 
logistics, product deliveries or payment gateways. This 
portal will act as the one stop shop for information, 
facilities and services for buying and selling products. 

4 Heldyfarm Foods LLP HELDYFARMS FOODS LLP, is the startup under AIC 
ALEAP WE HUB founded in 2019 with Director Mrs. B 
Praveena. We have identified that the school going 
children are facing malnutrition and junk food intake in 
some corporate schools. We have come up with millet-
based snacks rich with nutritious like fiber, minerals like 
iron, phosphorous, potassium, vitamins and proteins. 
Our innovative millet-based ingredients are tasty and 
healthy suitable to all age groups. 

5 MED C Pharma Private 
Limited 

It has been observed that diabetic patients in India, 
(India has the largest number of diabetics in the World), 
are struggling to find a suitable food product that helps 
them in managing blood glucose levels. Med C is the 
first company in India to come up with an innovative 
food product that has been proven clinically to manage 
blood glucose levels effectively. It has been produced 
and packaged in such a way that it can be easily 
consumed as a single meal pack 
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6 HARITHA GOLD 
ENTERPRISE PRIVATE 
LIMITED 

Haritha Gold Enterprises tackles the major challenge to 
the environment in an innovative way by converting the 
waste to wealth. The process based on harnessing novel 
microbial strains obtained from abandoned MSW dump 
sites has the capability of converting waste into bio oil. 
The low cost simple, scalable conversion of solid waste 
into bio oil and production of high grade manure bye 
product is the unique advantage of the innovation. This 
idea has had good traction from BIRAC having recently 
accessed Rs.19,00,000/- funding for the development 
of the commercial product. 

7 Triton Bio Solutions Triton Bio Solutions is using technologically advanced 
procedures for manufacturing aquatic feed, using 
natural products with less contamination and maximum 
yield that is expected to cater to export markets. It's 
microencapsulation technology protects the Probiotic 
microbes to sustain in harsh environmental conditions. 
Some of the product benefits are: 
-  To reduce the negative impacts of chemicals 
-  Reduce Environmental pollution due to chemical 

synthesis of Chemicals and Antibiotics. 
- Control the Food chain interruption 
- Reduce the antibiotic resistance in Microbes 
-  Increase in load of normal microbiota in human and 

animal gut. 

8 M/s. Rich Coastal Rich Coastal is all set to produce healthy snacks to see 
the consumers happy and healthy with quality food 
which is tasty yet healthy. 
The innovative techniques of low temperature frying, in 
a low-oxygen environment, produces nutritious and 
novel snacks, that preserves vitamins, colour, texture 
& flavour. 

9 METRON INNOVATIONS 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

Metron's innovation "Livepill", a hand held dispenser of 
medicines, rids the users and their caretakers of the 
stress of forgetting the schedules to take the prescribed 
dosage of medicines. 
Levepill's primarily functions as a reminder to the 
patients for their daily medication and making sure they 
consume their medicines on time. Livepill also keeps the 
caretaker informed if the patient fails to stay compliant 
towards their medication. It also manages their medical 
inventory and informs the pharmacies for a quick and 
timely replenishment. 

10 M/s. Vast Food Tech Pvt 
Ltd. 

Food Safety, Health, Wellness & Sustainability have 
been the major reasons for the radical shift in consumer 
behavious. Vast Food Tech, Founders, have come up 
with an innovative processing technology that can be 
used for preserving: 
- Fruit and Vegetables Products 
- Ready to Eat Meals 
- Seafood Products 
- Poultry and Meat Products 
-  Juices and Beverages etc., to name a few 
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11 M/s. Natures Bioplastic Plastics and their byproducts are littering our cities, 
oceans, and waterways, and contributing to health 
problems to humans and animals. Burning of plastic in 
the open air, leads to environmental pollution due to 
the release of poisonous chemicals. 
To take this problem "Nature Bio Plastic" manufacture 
biodegradable packing / Grocery bags, shopping bags, 
trash bags etc. These can be decomposed naturally in 
the environment, and also when disposed off in oceans, 
waterways and land. 

12 M/s. Arka Foods Arka Foods is harnessing the solar energy to produce 
dehydrated fruits and vegetables to make them 
available round the year. The ready to cook greens and 
vegetables are a boon to the millennials and busy 
youngsters. Solar cabinet food driers retains 100% of 
ingredients after drying when compare to electric dryers 
and conventional sun drying methods.   

13 Craft&Creation  CRAFT AND CREATIONS is creating beautiful gift and 
décor items like dolls, baskets, glower vases, photo 
frames from recycled and waste material like paper, 
natural material and fabric. 
The founder Ms. Gunjan Maheshwari produces vide 
range of products that have great customer appeal 
because they are creative, aesthetic and very 
affordable. Though her creations she is not only adding 
value to the interior decor items for homes but also 
providing employment to women artisans. Each of her 
product is a unique piece uniquely crafted with an 
exclusive finish,that can have an appeal in the 
international market too. 

14 Ushodhaya Women 
Weaves & Crafts 

The harvesting of banana fruits generates tones of 
stems and bark which is found to be an agricultural 
waste. Ushodhaya believes in creating wealth from 
waste by producing by-products of Banana Stems. It 
has created handicrafts and handlooms using fire and 
yarn making from the fiber. With over 2 years of 
extensive research on the natural fibers, a product line 
is ready as prototype. 

15 Lachu's Kitchen's Food & 
Curcuminoid Products 

Uma Lakshmi, the Founder of Lachu's Kitchen, aims to 
provide quality spice products to consumers in such a 
way that the natural chemicals and flavours are 
retained without preservatives. 
This venture will benefit both farmers and consumers. 
The key sectors where her products will be used are 
cooking (consumer goods), cosmetics and health. 

16 Mesmara Botanics 
Private Limited 

Mesmara's aim is to provide chemical free nutritional 
rich edible and wellness oils. The technology used in 
extracting these oiled is cold pressing. In the earlier 
days cattle were used to churn the raw material in a 
wood-based mortar and chisel model. Mesmara has 
replaced with an innovative mechanized system. In this 
process the oil is retained with its original flavour and 
has highest nutritional values and good fats which are 
essentially needed for human bodies. 
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17 OORDRZ CONSUMER 
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE 
LIMITED 

A customized App for gated communities to manage all 
the services rendered. The same customized app 
utilised for retail business and kirana stores for effective 
business management. Stock inventories payments and 
marketing of the products can be handled through this 
app. 

18 RECAPTURE Recapture's founder Neha says that we click too many 
pictures for occasion, and the transactions we do with 
pictures are mind boggling. Though we attend is no 
appropriate, affordable and scalable technology in 
gifting. 
Recapture sorts out this problem in a very innovative 
and interesting way. It offers the most creative 
solutions through great printing, framing and gifting 
ideas to help people relive their memories! Recapture 
will offer advanced technologies like augmented reality 
and AI integration, that will allow users to see their 
photo come out live through embedded video. 

19 M/s Sree Nitya Agro 
Industries 

Multigrain millet based natuos and khakras are 
manufactured by Sri Nitya Agro Industries. For the first 
time natuos made of millets are introduced in to the 
market in India with indigenes recipe. Ms. Neetha a 
engineering graduate turned young entrepreneur have 
come up with this idea where she has field work 
experience in millet based business under B2G model. 
She is getting support from we hub in terms of technical 
mentorship and machinery access. 

20 M/s. Rodi's (Socks 
Cluster) 

V. Naga Mani Devi is the managing director of M/S Rodis 
who is manufacturing innovative healthy socks. The 
company has received loan through PMEGP scheme. 
Mrs. Umra Sirohi, MD of AGS Impex is mentor for these 
units and supports for networking, business and market 
connects and buy back arrangements. 

21 M/s. Tejanvi (socks 
Cluster) 

C.Sandhya is the managing director of M/S Tejanvi who 
is manufacturing innovative healthy socks. The 
company has received loan through PMEGP scheme. 
Mrs. Umra Sirohi, MD of AGS Impex is mentor for these 
units and supports for networking, business and market 
connects and buy back arrangements. 

22 M/s. Golden Yarns 
(Socks Cluster) 

T. Pallavi Joshi is the managing director of M/S Golden 
Yarns who is manufacturing innovative healthy socks. 
The company has received loan through PMEGP 
scheme. 
Mrs. Umra Sirohi, MD of AGS Impex is mentor for these 
units and supports for networking, business and market 
connects and buy back arrangements. 

23 M/s. Sntia Care (Socks 
Cluster) 

C. Sloka is the managing director of M/S Snita Care who 
is manufacturing innovative healthy socks. The 
company has received loan through PMEGP scheme. 
Mrs. Umra Sirohi, MD of AGS Impex is mentor for these 
units and supports for networking, business and market 
connects and buy back arrangements. 
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24 M/s. Durga Maheshwara 
Enterprises (Socks 
Cluster) 

Ms. Deeksha is the managing director of M/S Durga 
Maheshwara Enterprises who is manufacturing 
innovative healthy socks. The company has received 
loan through PMEGP scheme. 
 
Mrs. Umra Sirohi, MD of AGS Impex is mentor for these 
units and supports for networking, business and market 
connects and buy back arrangements. 

25 M/s. Anantham (Socks 
Cluster)  

V. Sreedevi is the managing director of M/S Anantam 
who is manufacturing innovative healthy socks. The 
company has received loan through PMEGP scheme. 
Mrs. Umra Sirohi, MD of AGS Impex is mentor for these 
units and supports for networking, business and market 
connects and buy back arrangements. 

26 M/s. SATTVA BIO 
PRODUCTS 

Biodegradable bio polymers technology products PPE 
Kits approved by NITRA GoI. Aprons for medical labs 
and for various frontline workers are manufactured by 
using innovative biodegradable machinery available at 
AIC ALEAP WEHUB. Starch / cellulose based raw 
materials is used for manufacturing of different micron 
size of biopolymer sheet. A jute to bioplastic raw 
material manufacturing process is in R&D along with the 
incubation centre through technology transfer mode. 

27 M/s J R Surgicals JR Surgicals is the startup company incubated at Atal 
Incubation Centre ALEAP WE HUB Supported by AIM , 
NITI Aayog GOI.Stage : prototyping,  Mrs Jithendria 
and Mrs Radhika are the partners and regd in 2020.The 
utilization of biomedical / surgical accessories like mask 
and headcovers are very frequent and disposed off with 
in short period is a problematic statement 
environmentally to address this problem statement, JR 
surgicals have come up with an innovative idea of 
manufacturing biodegradable starch based masks and 
head covers. These are generally utilised by the life 
sciences and biomedical community at large extent and 
lakhs of tonns is being produced as a waste every year. 
Our solution would be easy and will solve this problem 
100%. 

28 M/s J R Foods JR Foods is the startup company incubated at Atal 
Incubation Centre ALEAP WE HUB Supported by AIM, 
NITI Aayog GOI.Stage : Prototyping, Mrs Jithendria and 
Mrs Radhika are the partners and regd in 2020. The 
problem statement is that due to lack of minerals, 
vitamins, protein in the children and certain human 
population facing a huge scarcity the startup have come 
up with a Protein Bar. The ingredients were added in 
such a way the dry fruits and organic based nuts enrich 
the bar along with taste. It is suitable to diabetic people 
as the bar has jaggery instead of sugar. It has high 
nutrients protein extracted from plants and a Plant 
Protein Bar.  
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29 M/s Vybhava Robotics Vybhav Robotics is the startup company incubated at 
Atal Incubation Centre ALEAP WE HUB Supported by 
AIM, NITI Aayog GOI. Regd in 2019, Stage : MVP. It is 
registered as Partnership company with Partners Mrs 
Shailaja and Mr Krishna Murthy, MSME Udyog Aadhar 
registered. It is a service and manufacturing based 
company in STEM sector. The motto is to put the efforts 
to popularize STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering 
and Mathematics) education in India. Robotics 
initiatives like establishing robotics labs, workshops, 
competitive events, Maker Fairs, teachers training and 
many more. Customers are the students, teachers, 
academicians, researchers, industrialists and to  
exercise all kinds of  communities with advanced 
technology and the latest innovations. Also to bring 
these target customers of underdeveloped and 
developing countries to a par excellence and to meet 
the industry needs. The company has Product, Process, 
Service and Social Innovation catering the needs of 
academic, Research and Industry. Have developed 
certain traction with income generation. The company 
is looking for network in academia, R&D and Industry 
for prototyping and product development. Looking for 
Training and skill development projects from B2G and 
B2B segments. 

30 M/s SHAMRU FOODS Shamru Foods is the startup company incubated at Atal 
Incubation Centre ALEAP WE HUB Supported by AIM , 
NITI Aayog GOI. Stage : Prototyping, Founders and 
Directors are Mrs Mrdula and Mrs Sharada, MSME 
Udyog Adhar Registered and Startup India. The 
problem statement is that the shelf life of foods require 
disruptive technology for all kinds of items to preserve 
and to consume further without adding chemicals and 
additives. Freeze drying or Lyophilisation of Foods 
Vegetables, Fruits, Cooked foods, perishable items etc. 
have a disruptive shelf life technology for 2-10 years 
that has a vacuum freeze drying method that performs 
cryatallization of the foods at molecular level and drying 
occurs. Shamru Foods Products are- Cooking varieties 
of Biryani, Sambar Rice, Upma, Fruit Bites, Vegetable 
Bites etc. 

31 M/s GREEN GOLD 
INDUSTRIES 

Ecovactive Enterprises Pvt. Ltd is the startup company 
incubated at Atal Incubation Centre ALEAP WE HUB 
Supported by AIM , NITI Aayog GOI. Stage : 
Prototyping, Registered in 2020, Mrs Najma is the 
founder Director and MSME Udyog Aadhar Registered 
and DIPP startup India registered.  We have come-up 
with alternative solution to this worldwide problem - 
Biopolymer.  Bioplastic PLA production from Industrial 
Effluent through bacteria and algal cultures. Mixed 
microbial culture will be cultivated using nutrient rich 
source of dairy industry waste water. Biodegredable 
syringes are manufactured further by utilising the same 
as raw material using injection moulding and other 
machineries.  
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32 M/s Prahar Industries Prahar Industries is the startup company incubated at 
Atal Incubation Centre ALEAP WE HUB Supported by 
AIM, NITI Aayog GOI. Stage: Prototyping, A Partnership 
based company, MSME udyog aadhar registered in 
2020, with Director Mrs Jyothsna Reddy, and 
Ms.Praharshitha as the partners.  As we all know the 
problem statement of plastic based sanitary napkins. 
These are difficult to perform incerneration and other 
waste management and handling methods. The startup 
product have come up with an idea of producing banana 
fiber based sanitary napkins. Using biodegradable 
layers manufactured with corn starch, banana fibre and 
non-woven cloth the sanitary napkin was being 
prototyed at the AIC ALEAP WE HUB. Further the 
company is taking technology transfer of herbal based 
NAARI Sanitary Napkin from NRDC through the 
franchise agency ALEAP and incubating along with the 
other startup companies as a cluster. 

33 M/s MJK Enterprises MJK Enterprises is the startup company incubated at 
Atal Incubation Centre ALEAP WE HUB Supported by 
AIM, NITI Aayog GOI. Stage: Prototyping, Now a days 
due to usage of plastic based products, concerned for 
eco-friendly products and this use have become a policy 
in Indian and the world. The startup MJK Enterprises 
has come up with an innovative idea of bamboo based 
products like water bottles, cutlery, brush etc.  The 
company is registered  

34 ANUHA FOOD 
PRODUCTS PRIVATE 
LIMITED. 

Dehydrated products and blends / food products like 
Red Onion Powder, Garlic Powder, Ginger Powder, 
Tomato Powder, Green Chilli Powder, Lemon Powder, 
Tamarind Powder, Crispy Fried Onion Flakes, 
Dehydrated Onion Flakes, Dehydrated Garlic Cloves, 
Calcutta Jhalmuri Murmura Masala, lemon Tea Masala 
and Indian Protein Drink (Sattu drink) 

35 NEOINVENTRONIX 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

Neo Inventronix is a techno centric innovation 
company. Our innovative work is mainly focusing on 
room sterilization and air purification systems. Our 
strength is in design, development and manufacturing 
of specialty medical, hospital equipment which can 
contain and remove all kinds of pathogens, viruses and 
bacterial from the closed spaces. Particularly in the 
Isolation Wards, Hospitals, ICU's, OTS, Burn Wards, 
Courier warehouses, Animal houses etc. The products 
can be termed as super sterilizers which can cut shot 
cross contamination and make the environment 
pleasant. 

36 IIIRPD - INSTITUTE FOR 
INDUSTRIAL 
INTERDISCIPLINARY 
RESEARCH AND 
PRODUCT 
DEVELOPMENT  

SHRALA (Social Humanoid Robot leased on 
Autonomous Leaining Algorithm). Robot which will 
interact and create awareness of Covid-19 and serves 
food and medicines to the patinece as in current 
situation which has sanitizer dispenser for human and 
non-contact temperature testing to check the health 
condition 
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37 BINFORD RESEARCH 
LABS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Binford Research labs was founded with an intent of 
making Robots ubiquitous at an industrial scale and we 
believe that ubiquity is a bio product of indigenization. 
At Binford we design, develop, manufacture deploy 
cutting edge components for Drones (UAV). Our first 
product is an indigenous chip for autonomous flight. If 
we think of UAV as a human the autopilot is its brain. 
In the current ecosystem there is a shortage of robust 
autopilots that allow for fully autonomy and 
autonomous flight. Our autopilot is designed for low 
latency on board computation, it allows for better and 
better fusion and integration of various sensors on our 
drone. This allows us to build and deploy custom drones 
for our clients for agriculture, spraying, mapping 
surveillance. We have been deploying these drones with 
the Telengana state government and other private 
entities. This autopilot is tied to an app that 
comes with it, this app helps us monitor the drones 
health ,weather, location and get connect to the DGCA 
(Directorate General of Civil aviation ) server for an 
NPNT (no permission no take off compliance) compliant 
flight helping us better shape the drone ecosystem by 
making sure there are no illegal flights in the country 

38 SCALEUP 
CONSULTANTS 

GoLime is an Audio/Video and any content streaming 
device that can receive content through its Content 
Delivery Network and provide data access to the user. 
Its simple plug and play option makes it easy to use and 
install. The user need not install any application to 
access the content. 
The Startup is also developing an indigenous 
videoconferencing platform for secured 
communications 

39 NEON HOMOEOPATHY 
MANUFACTURERS 

Neonplus Homoeopathy - 76 products - Branding 
product developed - Marketing - Machinery space for 
manufacturing of products. 
All the 76 products are for 76 different lends of 
diseases, which are made of natural ingredients only, 
no side effects with fast relief. It can be sued for 
pregnant lady to children and old age, all the products 
are in reasonable costs 

40 Rmatic Solutions LLP A cleaning AI based Robot to clean bathrooms; Its so 
difficult for human to clean the human waste of others 
and in considered as the most unprivileged work, to 
help such human or workforce, a cleaning Robot would 
be helpful for such workforce or humans. 
A click of a button and placement of Robot in the 
washrooms or bathrooms will help to improve the 
hygienic conditions of those area with minimal human 
work. 

41 Eurth Techtronics 
Private Limited 

Aquaculture is a Key Industry that’s impacting the AP's 
GDP positively. We designed provided Water 
Resistant/Proof Lightning at low cost to these Aqua 
Farmers. We Saw the possibilities of scope of 
Automation End to End in the AQUA industry. Current 
Products do the basic job of Monitoring, where in the 
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actual requirement of the industry is Automation using 
IOT Hardware, BlockChain and Decision making to 
control the devices on Pond and Save the farmer from 
Expenditure, Loss or crop failure. 

42 Nimaya Robotics Private 
Limited 

Nimaya Robotics has created a Robotics Training 
System and an end-to-end training program called 
Suprayoga to help individuals with ASD and other 
multiple disabilities to acquire psychomotor and 
cognitive skills based on active learning, resulting in 
60% learning acceleration. The Nimaya System consists 
of 2 main hardware components – The Trainer Interface 
Unit (TIU) and the Skill Training Unit (STU), augmented 
by IoT enabled Cloud-based software for data capture, 
analysis, and reporting. Skill Training Unit (STU) is a set 
of unique units, which cover specific psychomotor skills. 
There are highly complex mechatronic units under the 
hood. For example, our Door device teaches palmar 
grasp, wrist rotation, bi-lateral coordination (3 
psychomotor skills), the concept of opening and closing 
doors, turn-taking (2 cognitive skills) and more. The 
child interacts with the STU, under the supervision of 
the therapist, to perform specific tasks (turn the knob 
to open the door). The STU responds to the child’s 
action with active feedback reinforcing the play-
learning and enabling retention. Currently, there are 6 
STUs covering more than 30 psychomotor skills and 
daily life activities. Each unit has been designed after 
extensive research. Ergonomic designing, careful 
selection of colors, textures, audio-sensory feedback, 
and gamification are the unique features of the STU. 
The entire system is portable, easy to use, and 
maintain. The reporting module provides individual 
student reports (based on Nimaya exclusive scientific 
measurement and analysis techniques) as well as 
school-wide reports. This takes the subjectivity out of 
the progress reporting which is currently a challenge. 

43 Microbial Research Lab 
Private Limited 

Identification of soil microbes in agriculture have 
become challenge for industry, R & D and academia. 
Microbial Research Lab Pvt Ltd has developed a new 
method - Q&C for soil testing in Agri Lands and 
Biofertilizers. Innovative MIDI system with technology 
transfer from USA along with the data base of microbes. 
Helping farmers to achieve higher yeild. PLFA / MLFA / 
FAME analysis of the samples with microbes would be 
performed. 

44 Ragni Foods LLP Food waste in India is generated at the rate of 16% per 
annum through post-harvest processing methods and 
certain wastages in the cold storage units. If one can 
utilize, this can be processed and exported to other 
countries where there is huge scarcity of food products. 
It can be achieved by increasing the shelf life of the 
packaged or processed foods. Ragni Food Processing 
LLP company is focusing on solar dried and freeze dries 
fruits and vegetable products. The company director 
Mrs. Manisha started working on food preservation and 
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processing techniques scouting with canned methods 
for tomatoes, dehydration techniques by electrical 
methods. The main disadvantage is these techniques 
are loss of ingredients and discoloration. Vacuum 
dehydration is a better technique found in terms of 
increased shelf life but have certain limits too. The best 
method to adopt is solar driers that is cheaper and 
qualitative method. Freeze Driers ensures the abundant 
increase in shelf life from 5 years to 10 years or several 
years which is a disruption but is costlier one. The 
company wants to leverage Freeze Dried products 
business by entering in to FMCG segment. 

45 Greentatwa Agri-Tech 
LLP 

Greentatwa is a social enterprise with Directors Mrs 
Roopa Maganti and Mr Ramarao Peddi and the company 
is focused on nutrition security with organic and natural 
farming methods. Products like organic Ponni Rice, 
Paddy are traded with Breakeven price from farmers 
and distributed to whole sellers, in TN and Puducherry. 
The firm in the second year has expanded to 2500 acres 
in AP, TS and TN. A Millet Processing centre is in 
operation in the district of Ananthapur. Retail business 
is in operations with the brand name "Sudhanya". 

46 Varma Farms Varma Farms is a proprietorship firm registered in 2020 
and started manufacturing of Fig products. Jams in 
combination with Jaggery and honey are the main 
products that were processed from end to end viz., 
farming, manual cutting, pre-treatment, washing, 
adding ingredients, streilisation and filling in bottles 
with labelling. Through drying process using electric 
dryers, the following products were made. They are Fig 
Bars, Powders, Chips, Tea Powder from leaves, desserts 
and Dry Figs (sundried). 

47 Hakate Technologies 
Private Limited 

The company started doing some filed work across 
India visiting several colleges and collected the ground 
reality in the gaps of the education system in 2017 to 
2018. Later, a decision taken to work and focus on 
product development for a problem statement on 
engineering education. So, in the year 2018-2019 the 
product at MVP stage developed using AI technology 
onboarding some premium level customers. The 
company expanded with investments from friends and 
relatives bootstarpping with nearly 1 crore. In 2019-
2020, certain traction developed in terms of business 
with more customer’s acquisition by the support of 
JNTUH Vice Chancellor. 

 
Incubator Achievements 

§ Received Second tranche amount of AIM for AIC from NITI Aayog Rs 2,88,70,000/- on 
26th March 2021 

§ Shortlisted for ACIC grant of AIM NITI AAYOG  
§ CIO of AIC ALEAP WE HUB was on boarded as Mentor for TSIC Government of Telangana 

Dec 2020    
§ Grains and Spice Processing Unit and Freeze-Drying Unit are in operations 
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Startup Achievements 

· Edwisely was awarded by ASSOCHAM in recognition as the “Emerging Startup of the 
Year award.”  

· Scaleup Consultants received The WEEK magazine's top 10 innovations of 2020. They 
are recognised Amazond EdStart Company. They are also awarded the Emerging 
StartUp of the Year 2020 in World Education Summit 2020, Hyderabad.   

· Binford Rsearch labs Pvt Ltd- Entered into an MOU with BDL in Aero India 2021. 

· Nimaya Robotics Pvt Ltd signs MoU with National Institute for Empowerment of Persons 
with Multiple Disabilities (NIEPMD) to work together on leveraging robotics for autism. 

· Arka Foods negotiated for processing order of 10 metric ton per day from Simply Fresh 
which is being funded by Protera Partners. 

· Anuha Foods entered Singapore market through Business Engineers Asia. 

· Rmatic Solutions LLP have filed a patent on lavatory Robot 

· Mesmara Botanics and Anuha Foods have received sustainable revenue in 2020-2021 

· 35 startups have received Mentorship from experts and mentors of AIM through one 
to one and group mentoring sessions 

· 7 Biotech startups were shortlisted for BIG grant 18th Call 2020-2021 

· GermiBAN and NeonHomeopathy were shortlisted for NIDHI4COVID Fund of KIIT 
Odisha  

· Neoinventronix Pvt Ltd received Rs 72 Lakhs Loan from the Canara Bank in Aug 2020; 
supplied their product GERMIBAN to BDL and Continental Hospitals. 

· Nimaya Robotics received Trade Mark 

· HeldyFarms LLP received a PO from Today's Kalam Foundation, Hyderabad worth Rs 5 
Lakhs 

· Nature Bio Pvt Ltd received licence from CIPET for Bioplastic Manufacturing 
 
 

ALEAP CREDIT GUARANTEE ASSOCIATION 

INTRODUCTION: 

ALEAP CREDIT GUARANTEE ASSOCIATION (ACGA) came into existence as a well thought 
out innovation to help smooth flow of credit to the MSME sector and to provide safety net 
to both MSME Entrepreneurs and financing banks in the form of credit guarantee and 
financial discipline. 
 
MAIN OBJECTIVES OF ALEAP CREDIT GUARANTEE ASSOCIATION (ACGA) 

Ø Assisting the budding entrepreneurs in their project preparation. 

Ø Educating them in understanding the back ward and forward linkages that are required 

for their enterprises. 

Ø Preliminary market survey, likely competition for their proposed products, services, 

etc. 

Ø Mapping market potential vis-à-vis project investment. 

Ø Educating them in studying and understanding the technical feasibility and economic 

viability. 

Ø Understanding the financial management, studying financial statements like profit & 

loss account statement, balance sheet, cash flow statement, etc. 
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Ø Forwarding the entrepreneur’s project report along with our detailed recommendation 

letter to the bank for sanction of loans and continuous follow up till loan sanction is 

accorded/ loan is approved. 

Ø Providing assistance in successful running of their enterprises and extending hand 

holding support to them at various stages in required areas.  

Following are few programs organised during the year: 

Webinar on Asset Restructuring Module for MSMEs (MSME-ARM) 

Organised a webinar on ‘Asset Restructuring Module for MSMEs (MSME-ARM)’ on 
December 29, 2020 to bring awareness about the “ARM-MSME” portal launched by SIDBI 
for the benefit of MSMEs.  About 100 members participated in the webinar.   
 
The participants will be provided with the access link and complete guidance on the 
procedure (Do It Yourself Procedure) for availing restructuring of their loan accounts in 
terms of RBI guidelines.   
 
Welcome Address by Smt K Rama Devi, President, ALEAP and Key Note Address by Sri 
Sanjay Jain, GM, SIDBI and Sri P S N Murthy, Credit Counsellor briefed ARM initiatives and 
Ms Deepthi Upadhyay, Managing Partner, Tekopt briefed about ALEIZONE for e -market 
place, which is an initiative by ALEAP.  
 
SAFE (SIDBI Assistance to Facilitate Emergency response against Corona Virus) 

SIDBI has launched SAFE Scheme to support MSMEs working in products and services to 
address the current crisis at subsidized interest rates. In this regard, SIDBI provided online 
loan application and powered Covid-19 MSME Help Desk to respond to queries.   
 
ALEAP & ACGA has disseminated the information on SAFE among the members, 
stakeholders and potential beneficiaries.   
 
Customers Meet by Bank of Baroda 

Organised a webinar on 29.12.2020 on Customers Meet by Bank of Baroda (BOB), which 
is a second largest bank in India next to SBI.  About 75 members were attended to the 
webinar.   
 
The BOB, SME Branch of Hyderabad offered SME customers to cater the needs of growing 
MSME business through Cash Credit, Letter of Credit, Bank Guarantee, Term Loan, etc.  
The BOB has adopted a new pricing strategy named CIBIL MSME Rank (CMR) based pricing 
for MSME Enterprises with credit exposure above Rs.25 lakhs and up to Rs.5 crore, which 
enables MSME businesses to access finance at competitive rates.  The Bank established a 
separate specialized team dedicated to sales and loan processing at SME Branch.   
 
Stand up India Scheme (SUI Scheme) 
 
The SUI Scheme is encouraging in setting up of green field enterprises by SCs, STs and 
women entrepreneurs to facilitate bank loans between Rs.10 lakh and Rs.1 Crore for 
manufacturing, servicing and trading sectors.  The scheme was launched in April 2016 and 
extended till FY 2025. 
 
The extent of margin money to be brought by the borrower may be reduced from ‘up to 
25% to up to 15%’. However, the borrower will continue to contribute at least 10% of the 
project cost as own contribution.  Loans for enterprises with agri-allied activities are also 
allowed to boost the agriculture sector/farmers and improve the processing sector.  The 
entrepreneurs can also avail subsidy with the existing State/Central Subsidy Schemes.    
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ALEAP & ACGA has provided the details of SUI Scheme to all the members to avail bank 
loans under the Scheme.   

 
Few Members who have availed financial assistance during the year 2020-21: 

S. 
No 

Name of the Entrepreneur & 
Enterprise 

Scheme 
Financial 

Assistance 

1 Ms. A.Kavitha,  
M/S.Hariram Pharma Solutions 

Stand Up India Corporation Bank 
INR 50 Lakhs 

2 Ms. Samitha Ballurkar 
M/s. SS Food processing 
Industries 

CGT MSME Kotak Mahindra 
Bank 
INR 30 Lakhs 

3 Ms. Indira Priyadarshini 
M/s. Pundari In House  
Homemade pickles 

PMEGP Canara Bank 
INR 25 Lakhs 

 
 

CENTRE FOR ENTREPRENEURSHIP DEVELOPMENT (CED) 

Centre for Entrepreneurship Development (CED), an ISO certified institution was 

established in 1997 by the Association of Lady Entrepreneurs of India (Formerly known as 

ALEAP) to create passion and to stimulate entrepreneurial spirits and skills among women 

and youth to create new Mirco, Small & Medium enterprises. The Centre, having completed 

18 years, provides seamless service in promoting entrepreneurship and in providing a pro-

business environment to foster the progress of MSMEs towards success and prosperity. It 

is registered under Societies Act for providing training and development of Mirco, Small & 

Medium enterprises.  

CED has various milestones in its road travelled as a pioneering institute in the field of 

Entrepreneurship Development, supporting the MSME sector which is the growth engine 

of the economy extending a wide range of services including hand-holding, motivating and 

mentoring. 

 

FOLLOWING PROGRAMS WERE CONDUCTED DURING 2020-2021 

S.No Place Duration 
Nature of 

Activity/ Type 
No. of 

Candidates 

1. ALEAP Industrial 
Estate, Pragathi 
Nagar, Hyderabad 

21.12.2020 to 
11.01.2021 

Food Processing 
EDP 

27 

2 ALEAP Industrial 
Estate, Hyderabad 

21.10.20 to 11.11.2020 EDP 
(Handicrafts) 

40 

3 ALEAP Industrial 
Estate, Hyderabad 

02.09.2020 to 
21.09.2020 

BIRED 
Sponsored EDP 

25 

4 ALEAP Industrial 
Estate, Hyderabad 

26.08.2020 to 
14.09.2020 

Agri EDP 34 

5 ALEAP Industrial 
Estate, Hyderabad 

16.07.2020 to 
06.08.2020 

Self EDP 66 

6 ALEAP Industrial 
Estate, Hyderabad 

31.03.21  to 16.04.2021 Self EDP 28 
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7 ALEAP Industrial 
Estate, 
Vijayawada 

04.02.2021 to 
20.03.2021 

AC & ABC 30 

8 ALEAP Industrial 
Estate, Hyderabad 

13.02.2021 to 
29.03.2021 

AC & ABC 19 

 
Women Entrepreneurs International Trade and Technology Centre (WE ITTC) 

Women Entrepreneurs International Trade & Technology Centre (WE ITTC) is registered 
under Sec.8 of the Companies Act, 2013 exclusively for women entrepreneurs for 
promotion of MSME's [Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises] in India and marketing network 
facilities in India & abroad. With its rich experience, expertise and visionary 
leadership Association of Lady Entrepreneurs of India (ALEAP) and SAWDF partners 
with WE ITTC for a successful journey ahead together. WE ITTC is an organization which 
facilitates women with right resources to realize their big dream.  

WE ITTC focuses on global trade and improve the trade participation and performance of 
women MSMEs. WE ITTC encourages women social entrepreneurs by unleashing their 
power and potential to address the social issues and concerns. WE ITTC enable social 
entrepreneurs by strengthening their talents and skills. 

WE ITTC will build an end to end supporting echo system for women entrepreneurs and 
innovators which includes professional, personal and technology/digital training, Coaching, 
mentoring, partnerships, resources, and funding/incubation support and market reach. WE 
ITTC another focus point is to support unorganized micro businesses. Efforts are towards 
transforming these sector women into organized and growth-oriented enterprises with a 
vision by scaling their products and services. Supporting them with government policies 
and regulations regarding business and industry and introducing them to administrative 
discipline and high growth areas of business. 

Current projects of WE ITTC: 

1. Organizing international webinars: Proposed to organise webinars on Business 
resilience, Food Technologies and Digital Entrepreneurship. These webinars will have 
global participation and will be addressed by international speakers. 

2. Trade Center :  WE ITTC will setup international trade center for women (ITCW) The 
initiative aims to accelerate women entrepreneurship. It will provide state- of- art one 
stop platform to enhance their business, and get their products marketed globally. The 
Women Trade  Centre will enable women entrepreneurs to come forward and participate 
in international trade, greater economic benefits and enhance their competitiveness to 
tap market opportunities. WE ITTC aims to scale up the she -led endeavors through 
international trade shows, partnership meets, consultations and conferences. 

3. Ecommerce platform ALEIZONE: ALEIZONE is an E-Business Suite, for women 
entrepreneurs across the globe to run their business both online & onsite. ALEIZONE 
is the powerhouse equipped with an e-commerce portal, a full-fledged design studio, 
an exhibit house in the center of the city and a consulting forum, all under a single 
umbrella. It aims to bring 10,000 women entrepreneurs to explore the E-business 
world by nurturing, hand holding and bridging the gap to reach global markets using 
innovative technologies & brand building digital strategies. 
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4. Sikshana ,Sadhana & Samrudhi “  : Outcome based Capability Building Program for 
on boarding women entrepreneurs to Ecomm  .To support women entrepreneurs t o be 
successful on E-commerce platforms ,ALEAP in association with renowned global 
organizations  and Ecommerce experts  has  built a powerful toolkit , India's First ever 
outcome based capability building program for women entrepreneurs named as  
“Sikshana ,Sadhana & Samrudhi “ . 

5. On line Learning platform : WE ITTC is developing  an integrated platform, designed 
to build the capacity of women entrepreneurs in South Asia region  to leverage the 
potential of  on line learning , in person training , mentoring and coaching capabilities 
of WE ITTC . This platform also support to monitor skill building activities of the 
organization.  

DIVIDEND: 

As the Company being Section 8 Company, the declaration of dividend is not applicable. 

STATUTORY AUDITOR& AUDIT REPORT: 

At the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Association of Lady Entrepreneurs of India, M/s 

Nataraja Iyer & Co., Chartered Accountants bearing Firm Registration Number 002413S 

were reappointed as Statutory Auditors for a period of Five Years starting from the year 

2019-2020 and will hold office upto the AGM to be held during 2024.  

DEPOSITS 

The Company is Section 8 Company. The Company has not accepted any deposits pursuant 
to the provisions of the Act. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUT GO -NIL 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

The Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as 
it does not fall within purview of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence it 
is not required to formulate policy on corporate social responsibility. However, the 
company being a Section 8 company, it promotes charitable objects. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(3)(C) of the Companies Act, 2013 with 
respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that: 

i. in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2021, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures;   

ii. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently 
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at 31stMarch, 2021 
and of the income and expenditure statement of the company for that period; 

iii. the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities; 

iv. the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
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v.  the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions 
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively. 

DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

The provisions of Section 149 for appointment of Independent Directors do not apply to 
the company. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186: 

During the year under review, the Company has not advanced any loans/ given guarantees 
pursuant to section 186 of the Act. 

However, Pursuant to Section 186(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board (Managing 

Committee) has approved to invest upto INR 3,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Crores only) in 

other Sec 8 entities, in a phased manner as and required, which is well within the limits 

prescribed under the said section.  

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

None of the employee has received remuneration exceeding the limit as stated in rule 5(2) 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGT-9: 

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of Annual Return is attached 
as Annexure-A 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:  

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties during the year referred to in 
sub-section (1) of section 188 in Form–AOC-2 is attached as Annexure-B. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation and sincere 
gratitude to the Government of India, Government of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh, and 
the Bankers to the Company for their valuable support and look forward to their continued 
co-operation in the years to come. 

Your Directors acknowledge the support and co-operation received from the employees 
and all those who have helped in the day to day management.  

 
Place: Hyderabad    By order of the Board of Directors         
Date: 11.09.2021                        For Association of Lady Entrepreneurs of India 
 
 

                                                  SD/- 
K. RAMA DEVI 

(DIRECTOR & PRESIDENT) 
DIN - 01571458 
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Annexure-A  

FORM No.MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUALRETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED  
ON 31.03.2021 

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 

i.  CIN U99999TG1994NPL017022 

ii.  Registration Date 14/02/1994 

iii.  Name of the Company ASSOCIATION OF LADY ENTREPRENEURS 
OF INDIA 

iv.  Category/Sub-Category of the 
Company 

Company Limited by Guarantee/ Company 
licenses under Section 8 (25 of 1956 Act) 

v.  Address of the Registered office 
and contact details 

D NO. 8-2-120/86/9/A/30, ROAD NO. 2 
BANJARA HILLS, HYDERABAD, TS 500034 
IN 

vi.  Whether listed company NO 

vii.  Name, Address and Contact details 
of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if 
any 

NOT APPLICABLE 

 

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:  

The Company being a Section 8 Company and hence not applicable 

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company 
shall be stated:- 

Sr. 
No. 

Name and Description of 
main products/ services 

NIC Code 
of the 

Product/ 
service 

%  to total turnover of 
the company 

1 Services of Membership 
Organization 

Services to Women 
Entrepreneurs 

 

99959950 

100% 

Rs. 99,00,941.00 
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III PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name And 
Address Of The 

Company 
CIN/GLN 

Holding/ 
Subsidiary 
/Associate 

%of 
shares 
held 

Applicable 

Section 

1. NIL     

2. NIL     

 

IV SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of 
Total Equity):  

The Company being a Guarantee company registered under Section 8 (25 of Companies 
Act, 1956) 

NIL 

i. Category-wise Shareholding 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year 

No. of Shares held at the end of 
the year % 

Change 
during 

the year Demat Physical Total 
% of 
Total 

Shares 
Demat Physical Total 

% of 
Total 

Shares 

A. Promoter          

1) Indian  NIL        

a) Individual/ HUF          

b) Central Govt          

c) State Govt(s)          

d) Bodies Corp          

e) Banks / FI          

f) Any Other          

Sub-total(A)(1):-          

2) Foreign  NIL        

g) NRIs-Individuals          

h) Other-Individuals          

i) Bodies Corp.          

j) Banks / FI          

k) Any Other….           

Sub-total(A)(2):-          

B. Public 
Shareholding 

 NIL        

1. Institutions  NIL        

a) Mutual Funds          

b) Banks / FI          

c) Central Govt          

d) State Govt(s)          

e) Venture Capital 
Funds 
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f) Insurance 
Companies 

         

g) FIIs          

h) Foreign 
Venture Capital 
Funds 

         

i) Others 
(specify) 

         

Sub-total(B)(1)          

2. Non Institutions          

a) Bodies Corp. 

(i) Indian 

(ii) Overseas 

         

b) Individuals 

(i)Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto Rs. 1 lakh 

(ii)Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in 
excess of Rs 1 lakh 

         

c) Others(Specify)          

Sub-total(B)(2)          

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 

         

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for 
GDRs&ADRs 

         

Grand Total 

(A+B+C) 

NIL         

 
ii. Share holding of Promoters: NIL 

Sr. 
No 

Shareholder’s 
Name 

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

Shareholding at the end of the 
year 

 

  

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 

Shares of 
the 

company 

%of 
Shares 

Pledged / 
encumbe 

red to 
total 

shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 

Shares of 
the 

company 

%of 
Shares 

Pledged / 
encumbe 

red to 
total 

shares 

% 
change 
in share 
holding 
during 

the 
year 

1.         

2.         

3.         

 Total  NIL      
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iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change: NIL 

Sr. 
No 

 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

 At the beginning of the 
year 

NIL    

 Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the 
year specifying the 
reasons for increase 

/ decrease (e.g. allotment 
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat 
equity etc): 

NIL    

 At the End of the year NIL    

 
iv.  INDEBTEDNESS:- 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for 

payment 

 
Secured Loans 

excluding 
deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 

Deposits 
Total 

Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning 
of the financial year 

i) Principal Amount 

ii) Interest due but not paid 

iii) Interest accrued but not 

 

 

-- 

0 

0 

 

 

-- 

-- 

-- 

 

 

-- 

-- 

-- 

 

 

-- 

-- 

-- 

Total (i+ii+iii) 0 -- -- -- 

Change in Indebtedness during 
the financial year 

 

 -  Addition 

 

 -  Reduction 

 

0 

0 

-- 

-- 

-- 

-- 

-- 

-- 

-- 

-- 

0 

Net Change 0 -- -- -- 

Indebtedness  at the 

end  of the financial year 

i) Principal Amount 

ii) Interest due but not paid iii) 
Interest accrued but not due 

 

0 

0 

0 

 

 

-- 

-- 

-- 

 

 

-- 

-- 

-- 

 

 

-- 

-- 

-- 

Total  (i+ii+iii) 0 -- -- -- 
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V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: NIL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: NIL 

B. Remuneration to other directors: NIL 

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD:NIL 

No remuneration is being taken by any management committee members of the company. 

 
VI. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type 

Section 
of the 

compani
es Act 

Brief 
description 

Details of Penalty/ 
Punishment/Compou
nding fees imposed 

Authority 
[RD/NCLT/ 

Court] 

Appeal 
made. If 
any(give 
details) 

A. Company NIL 

Penalty      

Punishment    NIL   

Compounding      

B. Directors NIL 

Penalty      

Punishment   NIL   

Compounding      

C. Other Officers In Default NIL 

Penalty      

Punishment   NIL   

Compounding      
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Annexure-B 

FORM NO. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 

8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company 

with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 

2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto. 

 

1.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length 

basis 

 

(a)  Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: NIL 

(b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: NIL 

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: NIL 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, 

if any: NIL 

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: 

(f)  Date(s) of approval by the Board: NIL 

(g)  Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL 

(h)  Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under 

first proviso to section 188: NIL 

 

2.  Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length 

basis   

 

(a)  Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:  

 ALEAP Credit Guarantee Association (few are common governing body members) 

(b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:  

      Payment made towards professional charges / Audit fees for the year 2019-20 

(c)  Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: One Time 

(d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, 

if any:  Advance for expense  written off: INR 10,000/- 

(e)  Date(s) of approval by the Board (Managing Committee), if any: 08.02.2021 

(f)  Amount paid as advances, if any: INR 10,000/-  

 

Place: Hyderabad    By order of the Board of Directors         
Date: 11.09.2021                         For Association of Lady Entrepreneurs of India 
 
 

                                                    SD/- 
K. RAMA DEVI 

(DIRECTOR & PRESIDENT) 
DIN - 01571458 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

To the Members of  
ASSOCIATION OF LADY ENTREPRENEURS OF INDIA 
(Formerly known as Association of Lady Entrepreneurs of Andhra Pradesh) 
 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the standalone financial statements of ASSOCIATION OF LADY 
ENTREPRENEURS OF INDIA (Formerly known as Association of Lady Entrepreneurs of 
Andhra Pradesh) (“the Association”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 
2021, the statement of Income and Expenditure and cash flow statement for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Association as at March 31, 2021, and its excess of Expenditure over 
income, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.   
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Association in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical r esponsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  
 
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s 
Report Thereon 
 
The Association’s Managing Committee is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information.  The other information comprises the information included Board’s Report 

including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the standalone financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information 

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is 

to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  We have 

nothing to report in this regard. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 

Standalone Financial Statements  

The Association’s Managing Committee is responsible for the matters stated in section 

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 

standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance, and cash flows of the Association in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards 

specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding of the assets of the Association and for preventing and detecting frauds 

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that 

give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, the Managing Committee is responsible for 

assessing the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless the Managing Committee either intends to liquidate the Association or 

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Those Managing Committee Members are also responsible for overseeing the 

Association’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 

a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 

the basis of these financial statements.  
 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.    
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.  
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.   
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Association to cease to continue as a going concern.   

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.   

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. The Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 shall not apply to the Association as per exemption provided under Clause 
2(iii) of the order, hence separate statement on matters referred in para 3 of the 
order is not furnished. 

 
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.   

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
the Association so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Income and Expenditure, and the Cash 
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 except for subscription from members in 
arrears and payment of gratuity to eligible employees which are accounted on 
cash basis. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors (Managing Committee 
Members), none of the directors (Managing Committee Members) is disqualified 
as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director (Managing Committee 
Members) in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
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(f) In our opinion considering nature of activity, size of operation and organisational 
structure of the entity,  the Association has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at 31st March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Association considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of Section197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, no remuneration paid by the Association to any of its 
directors (Managing Committee Members) during the year. 

(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
give to us: 

i. The Association does not have any pending litigations which would impact 
its financial position  

ii. The Association did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Association.  

 
  For NATARAJA IYER & CO.  
  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
  Firm Registration No. 002413S 
   
  -Sd- 
   
Place: Hyderabad  PARTNER 
Date : 11.09.2021   
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Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-

1. Dr. P. Jyothi Rani 
Sd/-

2. Mrs. M. Swarupa
Sd/-

Sd/-
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ASSOCIATION OF LADY ENTREPRENEURS OF INDIA 
(Formerly Association of Lady Entrepreneurs of Andhra Pradesh) 

 (Registered under Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956) 
 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS:  NOTE 17 

 
A) CORPORATE INFORMATION: 

 
ASSOCIATION OF LADY ENTERPRENUERS OF ANDHRA PRADESH (“the 
Association“) a Company incorporated on 14/02/1994 in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 25 of Companies Act, 1956.  Subsequently on bifurcation of 
Andhra Pradesh, the Association changed its name on 04/06/2015 to 
ASSOCIATION OF LADY ENTREPRENEURS OF INDIA. The Association is primarily 
engaged to undertake or assist any projects, development of Industrial Estates, 
programs and schemes for upliftment of women of the nation in educational and 
social aspects by giving them vocational and professional training with the main 
aim to create women entrepreneurs.  
 

B)  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

1. Method of Accounting: The financial statements have been prepared on accrual 
basis, unless otherwise stated, under historical cost convention in accordance 
with the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in India including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)Rules 2014. 
 

2. Use of Estimates: The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with 
Indian GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported balance of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to 
contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and 
reporting amounts of income and expense during the period. 
Although the estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current 
events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision 
in the estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future periods. 
 

3. Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment are stated at 
Cost of Acquisition/construction less depreciation. Cost comprises of purchase 
price and any other cost attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition 
for its intended use. Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on Written Down 
value Method (WDV) based on useful life of Asset as prescribed in Schedule II to 
the Companies Act, 2013.  
 

4. Employee Benefits:  

a) Provident Fund: The Association contributes to Provident Fund at prescribed 
rates and charged to statement of Income and Expenditure. 

b) Gratuity: Gratuity to the eligible employees shall be accounted on payment 
basis. 

c) Leave Encashment: The policy of the Association for earned leaves is to be 
availed by the employees and cannot be encashed. 
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5. Revenue Recognition: 

a) Membership Subscription: Membership Subscription is accounted on receipt 
basis except for advance subscription received for ensuing years which is 
shown under other current liabilities as subscription received in advance. 

b) Interest Income: Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis 
taking into account the accrued amount certified by the bank. 

c) Admission and Life Membership Fee: Admission and Life Membership fees 
received from members on admission of member is taken into General 
Reserve. 

6. Recognition of Grants: Grants for the programs from Government or other 
Corporates, is recognized, where there is reasonable assurance that the 
Association will comply with the conditions attached to them and where such 
benefits have been earned by the Association and it is reasonably certain that 
ultimate collection of the grant will be made.  
 

7. Incomes and Expenses relating to Industrial Estates and Other programs: 
All the Incomes and Expenses, Assets and Liabilities relating to Industrial Estates 
are netted off and balance shown as liability/asset in the Balance sheet. 

8. Earnings per share: Earnings per share is not applicable as there are no shares 
issued by the Association. 
 

9. Provision and Contingent Liabilities: A provision is recognized when the 
Association has a present obligation as a result of past event i.e. it is probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of 
which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its 
present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle 
the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

A contingent liability is a potential liability that may occur, depend ing on the 
outcome of an uncertain future event. A contingent liability is recorded in the 
accounting records if the contingency is probable and the amount of the liability 
can be reasonably estimated. If both of these conditions are not met, the liability 
may be disclosed in notes on the financial statements. 
 

10. Inventories: Stock of material held for training is valued at lower of cost or net 
realizable value. Cost of material includes purchase price less input credit taken of 
indirect taxes if any and charged on FIFO method. 
 

11. Accounting Standards to the extent applicable and relevant with reference to 
the transactions undertaken requiring disclosures have been considered.  
 

C) NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 

1. Admission fee and Life Membership Fee of `4,17,500/-(Previous Year ` 9,08,300/) 
collected during the year from the members is credited to General Reserve. 
 

2.1 Payments/Receipts relating to unregistered land of Industrial Estate activity at 
Vijayawada have been netted off and the credit balance of ` 99,65,080/- has 
been shown under Non Current Liabilities; 
The Breakup for the above is as under; 
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INDUSTRIAL ESTATE – VIJAYAWADA 
 Rupees 
UN registered Land- Cost 556916 
Overhead Expenses- UN registered area 905918 
Development Expenses - UN registered area 1623792 

 3086626 
Less:  
Land receipts – UN registered area 1579000 
Grants from Govt. of India - UN registered area 766432 
Advances 9417874 
Amount refundable to Members 1288400 

 13051706 

Liability – Industrial Estate, Vijayawada 9965080 

 
2.2   Payments/Receipts relating to Industrial Estate activity at Nandigama Village, 

Sangareddy District have been netted off and the credit balance 
`7,31,25,463/- has been shown under Non Current Liabilities; 
The Breakup for the above is as under; 
 
INDUSTRIAL ESTATE – NANDIGAMA, SANGAREDDY DIST 
  
 
Land 

      Rupees 
104321250 

Land Development Charges and Registration 
Expenses  
Construction Expenses 

94224282 
61574678 

Overhead Expenses 
Purchase of other Assets 

C   Deposits & other current Assets 

  20299450 
    2647164 

52094106 

335160930 
Less:  
Amount received from members 380673540 
Other Income 20680772 
Deposits &Other liabilities 6932081 

 408286393 

Liability – Industrial Estate, Nandigama 73125463 

  

2.2.1 Land/Plots at Nandigama Industrial Estate admeasuring 37966 sq. yards has 
been mortgaged with HMDA for a period of 3 years.  

2.2.2 Original owners of land filed cases in various lower courts and writ in the High 
Court of Telangana Sate towards monetary claims which are all pending 
adjudication as such no ascertained liability as on date. 

2.3 Balance grant of ` 7953303/-receivable from Ministry of Textiles relating to 
ISDS scheme is not considered in the accounts as the claim of the Association 
is pending for approval of Ministry. 

2.4 Payments/Receipts relating to Industrial Estate activity at Bodduvari palem 
Village, SPSR Nellore District which is suspended due to cancellation of 
allotment of land by APIIC has been closed and after settlement of members 
due an amount of ` 5,15,074/- has been accounted in Statement of Income 
and Expenditure.  

2.5 Payments/Receipts relating to Industrial Estate activity at Balabhadra puram 
Village, East Godavari District have been netted off and the credit balance of  
` 3,68,983/- has been shown under Non Current Liabilities; 

The Breakup for the above is as under; 
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INDUSTRIAL ESTATE – BALABHADRA PURAM, EAST GODAVARI DIST 
        Rupees 
Land 33432042 
Overhead Expenses 

C    Deposits & other current Assets 
354014 

      
100000 

33886056 
Less:  
Amount received from members 7880000 
Advances from other Units 26375039 

 34255039 

Liability – Industrial Estate, Balabhadra puram 368983 

NOTE: APIIC issued a Final show cause notice dated 26.05.2021 calling the 
Association to provide reasons for violation of terms and conditions of the 
allotment order. In response Association filed Writ Petition No. 11133 of 2021 
in the Hon’ble High Court of Andhra Pradesh and the said court ordered to 
maintain status quo position till the disposal of WP.  

 
2.6 Payments/Receipts relating to Industrial Estate activity at Gidijala Village, 

Visakhapatnam have been netted off and the credit balance of `26,556/- has 
been shown under Non Current Liabilities; 
The Breakup for the above is as under; 
 

INDUSTRIAL ESTATE – GIDIJALA VILLAGE, VISAKHAPATNAM 
        Rupees 
Overhead Expenses 543444 

 543444 
Less:  
Amount received from members 570000 

 570000 

Liability – Industrial Estate, Gidijala, Visakhapatnam 26556 

 
NOTE: G.O.MS.No. 28 dated 05.02.2019 issued by Government of Andhra Pradesh 

authorize APIIC Ltd to allot 55 acres of land to the Association for the above 
work could not be allotted as APIIC Ltd could not take possession of the land 
as the same was allotted for housing purpose by Government of Andhra 
Pradesh. The Association yet to know the status on continuity of the above 
work. 

 
2.6.1 Land at Gidijala Village, Visakhapatnam has not been yet allotted to the 

Association. 
2.7 Payments/Receipts relating to ATAL Incubation Misson – Incubation Centre 

have been netted off and the credit balance of ` 3,55,61,892/- has been shown 
under Non Current Liabilities; 

 
The Breakup for the above is as under; 
 

ATAL INCUBATION MISSION – INCUBATION CENTRE 
         

Rupees 
Program Expenses 
Overhead Expenses 

P    Purchase of other Assets 
 

15665128 
149210 

29224110 

45038448 
Less:  
Grant received from Govt. of India 75000000 
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Advances from Main Account & AGRIP, Nandigam 5000000 
Other Income 596080 
Deposits &Other liabilities 4260 

 80600340 

Liability – ATAL Incubation Mission – Incubation 
Centre   

35561892 

 
2.8 Payments/Receipts relating to setting up of Garment LBI at ALEAP Industrial 

Estate, Gajularamaram have been netted off and the credit balance of  
` 9,423/- has been shown under Non Current Liabilities; 
The Breakup for the above is as under; 
 

Garment LBI – ALEAP IE, GAJULARAMARAM 

        Rupees 
P     Purchase of Tangible Assets 
       Overhead Expenses 

2732170 
1421 

2733591 
Less:  
Grant received from Govt. of India 2500000 
Advances from Main Account  243014 

 2743014 

Liability – Garment LBI, ALEAP IE, Gajularamaram 9423 

 
2.9 Payments/Receipts relating to setting up of MeitY Incubation Centre have 

been netted off and the credit balance of ` 2,46,296/- has been shown under 
Non Current Liabilities; 

 
The Breakup for the above is as under; 
 

MeitY – INCUBATION CENTRE 
              Rupees 

Grants to Startup Incubators 
Support & Management Cost 
Workshops organized by Association 
Overhead Expenses 
 
Less:  
Grant received from MeitY 

  
1325000 

      
82055 

    
826000 

          
649 

2233704 
 

2480000 

 2480000 

Liability – MeitY – Incubation Centre 246296 

 
2.10 Payments/Receipts relating to Strive Project have been netted off and the 

credit balance of ` 27,46,609/- has been shown under Non Current Liabilities; 
The Breakup for the above is as under; 
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STRIVE PROJECT 
        Rupees 

P    Apprenticeship Training Cost 
O   Overhead Expenses 
      Advances 
 

90588 
1130306 

32497 

1253391 
Less:  
Grant received from AIA 4000000 

 4000000 

Liability – Strive Project 2746609 

 
2.11 Payments/Receipts relating to DDUGKY Kutumbashree Kerala Phase 7 have 

been netted off and the credit balance of ` 1,58,70,833/- has been shown 
under Non Current Liabilities; 

 
The Breakup for the above is as under; 
 

DDUGKY KUTUMBASHREE KERALA PHASE 7 
        Rupees 
Training Cost 
Boarding & lodging 
Post Placement support 
Overhead Expenses 

P    Purchase of other Assets (less depreciation) 
      Advances 
 

6210199 
4222512 
225000 

6586585 
869008 
305000 

18418304 
Less:  
Grant received from DDUGKY Kerala 30421442 
Advances from Main Account &Units 3720000 
Deposits &Other liabilities 147695 

 34289137 

Liability – DDUGKY Kutumbashree Kerala Phase 7 15870833 

 
 
2.12 The Association stopped activity with Jakkampudi Economic Township 

Development Corporation Limited (JETDCL) and the amount collected from 
members ` 4,80,000/- has been refunded to members in 2020-2021. 

 
 
3. Additional information pursuant to the requirements of Part II of Schedule III to 

the Companies Act, 2013: 
 
Contingent Liabilities 

(A) Unexpired Bank Guarantee as at 31.03.2021 is ` 38,57,368/- (as at 
31.03.2020 is ` 38,57,368/-) 

 
 
 

4. Disclosures of related parties and transactions with related parties. 
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4.1. related Parties: 
 

S No. Name of the related party Relationship 

1 Centre for Entrepreneurship Development  Common Members 

2 ALEAP Credit Guarantee Association Common Members 

3 Rama Devi Kanneganti President 

4 Durga Bhavani Adusumilli Vice President 

5 Sreedevi Vemulapalli Secretary 

6 Kavitha Battula Treasurer 

7 Jyothi Rani Pidikiti Managing Committee Member 

8 Padmaja Prabhakar Kamireddy Managing Committee Member 

9 Tripuramba Yarlagadda Managing Committee Member 

10 Vijaya Lakshmi Bommadevara Managing Committee Member 

11 Padmavathi Uppala Managing Committee Member 

12 Swaroopa Rani Nidamanuri Managing Committee Member 

13 Sailaja Bander Managing Committee Member 

14 Pallavi Joshi Managing Committee Member 

15 Rajini Kumari Chamala Managing Committee Member 

16 Lakshmi Muppa Managing Committee Member 

17 Padmavathi Annapurna Balijepalli Managing Committee Member 

18 Srimahalakshmi Konda Managing Committee Member 

 
4.2 Transactions with related parties during the year: 
 
a. Income: NIL 
 
b. Expense/Payments: 

 
c.  In respect of provisional allotment of industrial plots in Nandigama Industrial 

Estate to the Managing Committee members (related parties) amount 
received towards cost of industrial plots and dues could not be disclosed as 
the said provisional allotment is pending actual measurement of the plots, 
actual fixation of the allotment price on account of changes in the cost of 
land purchased and execution of agreements with the members.  

 
  

S No. Name of the related party Transaction Amount (`) 

 
1 

 
ALEAP Credit Guarantee 
Association 

 
Advance for expense  
written off 

10000 
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4.3 Amount due as at 31.03.2021 to related parties: 
 

 
 
 
 

5. The Management has reviewed and found that recoverable amount of each 
tangible asset is higher than its carrying amount. Hence, no provision for 
impairment of tangible assets is considered. 
 

6. In the opinion of the Management Committee all the assets other than fixed 
assets, have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least 
equal to the amount at which they are stated in the financial statements. 
 

7. Corresponding comparative figures of previous year have been regrouped 
wherever required to correspond to the current year figures. 

 
 

SIGNATURES TO NOTES 1 TO 17 
 

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE MEMBERS OF MANAGING COMMITTEE 
For NATARAJA IYER & CO.  
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS  
 
 Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- 
PARTNER     Mrs.K.Rama Devi Mrs.A.Durga Bhavani 
      President  Vice President 
 
  Sd/- Sd/- 
      Mrs.V.Sreedevi  Mrs.B.Kavitha 
      Secretary  Treasurer 
         
       
      MEMBERS 

 
  Sd/- Sd/- 
      Dr. P. Jyothi Rani Mrs. M. Swarupa 
 
 
Place: Hyderabad    Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 11.09.2021    Date: 11.09.2021   

S No. Name of the related party Payable (`) 

1 Centre for Entrepreneurship 
Development 

3837600 
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